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o : Donald Allman, C.P.A. -

i 205 East University Ave., Ste. 165
L. Allsuan, Pﬁ Georgetown, Texas 78626

Email: dallman@donallmancpa.com

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT

Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
City of Hearne, Texas

We have audiled the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the discretely
presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregale remaining fund information of the City of Hearne, Texas, (the
“Cily”) as of and for the year ended September 30, 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the city’s basic financiat statements as listed in the lable of contents,

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of

internal contrel relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error. '

- Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our andit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Audiring Standards, 1ssued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that

we plan and perform the audit fo obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant
to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing a opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that'the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions,
Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of
the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Hearne, Texas, as of September 30, 2016, and the respective changes in
financial position, where applicable, cash flows thereof, and the respective budgetary comparison for the general fund for the year
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

MEMBER TEXAS SCCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS and AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

205 East University, Ste. 165, GEORGETOWN, TEXAS 78626 512-422-3700 FAX: 512-240-5460 WEBSITE www.donallmancpa.com
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Other Matters
Required Supplemeniary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion and analysis
on pages 3-9 and the schedule of changes in net pension liability and related ratios-Texas Municipal Retirement system, schedule
of contributions-Texas Municipal Retirement System, schedule of the city’s proportionate share of the net pension liability-Texas
Emergency Services Retirement System, and schedule of contributions-Texas Emergency Services Retirement system on pages 47
through 50, be presented to supplement the basic [inancial stalements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary mformation in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consisterncy with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance
on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance. :

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the City of
Hearne, Texas’ basic financial statements. The combining and individual non-major fund financial statements and budgetary
comparison schedules are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and budgetary comparison schedules are the responsibility of
management and were derived {from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and
other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our
opinion, the combining and individual non-major fund financial statements and budgetary comparison schedules are fairly stated in
all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated October 6, 2017, on our consideration of
the City of Hearne, Texas’ internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grants agrecments and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing and not to provide an opinion on
the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. Thal report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Governiment Auditing Standards in considering the City’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

4

Geor'getown, Texas
October 6, 2017
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
This sectron of City of Hearne Texas’ annual financial report presents our discussion and analysis of the City’s financial
performance during the fiscal year ended September 30, 2016. Please read it in conjunction with the City’s financial statements,
which follow this section. :

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

e  The city’s total combined Net Posilion was § $9,182,277 at September 30, 2016. This represents an increase of 5.8% in
the Governmental Activities and 5.0% in Business Activities for an overall increase of 5.3%.

*  During the year, the City’s expenses were $ 462,906 less than the $11,467,896 generated in taxes, charges for service

and other revenues for Governmental and Business-Type Activities. Comparatively; last year, the City’s expenses were
$508,000 less than revenues of $12,248,000.

» [n the City’s Business-Type Activities, Revenues decreased by 7% to $8,780,000 due to less grant money received.
Expenditures decreased by 0% to $ 7,510,000 .

» The Fund Balanece Surplus in the General Fund increased this year an amount of $ 471,871 t0 $ 1,605,651 .

Figure A-1, Required Components of the
City of Hearne's Annual Financial Report

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCTAL STATEMENTS

. _ \
This annual report contains the three required components of an annual Managements Basic Required
financial statement-management's discussion and analysis (this section), the Discussion Financial | |Supplementary
basic financial statements, and required supplementary information. The And Statements Information
basic financial statements include two kinds of statements that present Analysis
different views of the City:
*  The first two statements are government-wide financial
statements that provide both lorg-rerrn and short-ferm
information about the Cily's overall financial status
&
The remaining stalements are fund financial siatements that |
focus on individual parts of the governmenl, reporting the City's / R
operations in morc detail than the government-wide statements. '
Government- Fund Notes
* The governmental funds statements tell how general Wide Financial to the
government services were financed in the short term as well as Financial || Statements Financial
- what remains for future spending. . Statements Statements
*  Proprietary fund statements offer short and long-term

financial information about the activities the government operates
like businesses.

Surmmary <:> Detail

*  Fiduciary fund statements provide nformation aboul the
financial relationships in which the City acts solely as a trustee or
agent for the benelit of others, 10 whom the resources in question
belong.

The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the financial statements and provide more detailed data. The
statements are followed by a scction of required supplementary information (hat further explaing and supports the information in the financial
statements. Figure A-1 shows how the required parts of this annual report are arranged and related to one other.

Figure A-2 summarizes the major [eatures of the City’s financial statements, including the portion of the City government they cover and the
lypes of information they contain. The remainder of this overview section of management’s discussion and analysis explains the structure and
contents of each of the statements.



Figure A-2

Fund State ments

Type of Statements

Government-Wide

Governmental Funds

Proprietary Funds

Fiduciary Funds

Scope

Entire Agency's
goverament (except}
fiduciary funds) and the
Agency's component units

The activities of the cily
that are not proprictary or
fiduciary

Activities the city operates
similar to private business
sell insurance

Instances in which the city

.|1s the trustee or agent [or

someone else's resources.

Reguired Financial
Statements

*Statement of Net Position

*Balance Sheet

*Statement of Net Assets

*Statement of Fiduciary Net
Position

*Statement of activilies

*Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures & Changes
in Fund Balance

*Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures & Changes in
Fund Balance

#Statement of Changes in
Fiduciary Net Position

“Statement of Cash Flows

Accounting basis &
measurement focis

Accrnal accounting and
economic resources focus

Modificd accrual
accounting and current
fmancial resources focus

Accrual accounting and
economic resources (o focus

Accrual accounting and
economic resources focus

Type of Asset / Liability
Information

All assets and liabilities,
both financial and capital,
short-term and kng-term

Only assets expected to
be wsed up and liabilitics
that come due during the
year or soon thereafter,
no capital asscts included

All asscts and [liabilities, both
financial and capital, short-
term and leng-term

All assets and habilities both
short-term and long-term,
the Agency's funds do not
currently contain capital
assets, although, they can

All revenues and expenses
during the year, regardless

Revenues for which cash
is received during or soon

Allrevenues and expenses
durmg the year, regardless

All revenues and expenses.
during the year, rcgardless
of when cash is received or

of when cash is received
or paid

. . after the end of the year, |of when cash is received or
Type of Inflow / Ouiflow

expenditures when goods |patd aid.
Information be £ P pa

or services have been
received and payment is

due during the year or

Government-wide Statements

The government-wide statcments report information about the City as a whole using accounting methods similar to those used by private-sector
companies. The stalement of net position includes all of the government’s assets and liabilities. All of the current year’s revenues and expenses
are accounted for in the statement of activities regardless of when cash is received or paid. The two government-wide statements report the City’s
net position and how they have changed. Net position, (the difference between the City’s assets and liabilities), is one way to measure the City’s
financial health or position.

*  Over time, increases or decreases in the City’s net position are an indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating
respectively. . _
= To assess the overall health of the City, one needs to consider additional nonfinancial factors such as changes in the City’s tax base.

The government-wide statements of the City include the Governmental_activities. Most of the City’s basic services are included here, such as
general administration, public safety, streets and bridges, buildings and grounds, and Fnancial and professional. Property, sales and franchise
taxes finance most of these activities.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the City’s most significant funds — not the City as a whole. Funds are
accounting devices that the City uses to keep track of specific sources of funding and spending for particular purposes.

s  Some funds are required by state law and by bond covenants.

¢ The City Council establishes other funds to control and manage money for particular purposes or to show that it is properly using
certain taxes and gran(s.

The City has the following types of funds:

s Government funds — most of the City’s basic services are included in governmental funds, which focus on (1) how cash and other
financial assets that can rcadily be converted to cash flow in and out and (2) the balances left at year-end that arc available for
spending. Consequently, the governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view that helps you determine whether there
are more or fewer {inancial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the City’s programs. Because this information does
nol encompass the additional long-term focus of the government-wide statements, we provide additional information at the bottom of
the governmental funds statement, or on the subsequent page, that explain the relationship or differences between them.

e Proprietary funds — Services [or which the City charges customers a fee are generally reported in proprietary funds. Proprietary funds,
like the government-wide statements, provide both long-term and short-lerm [inancial informatton.

4
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THE CITY AS A WHOLE

Table A-1
City's Net Position
(In thousands of dollars)

Governmental

Business-type

Acuvities Activities Total
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
Current Assets
Cash & Cash Equivalents 3 356§ 330 % 255 % 541 $ 61 % 871
Receivables 599 433 1,527 1,824 2,126 2,257
Internal Balances 334 638 (934) (638) - -
Inventories - [48 131 148 131
Other Assets 18 21 13 26 31 47
Restricted Assets 363 358 757 616 i,120 974
Total Current Assets: 2,270 [,780 1,766 2,500 4,036 4,280
"Noncurrent Assets
Capital Assets 3,832 9,464 27,427 27,109 37,259 36,573
Less Accumulated Depreciation (5,992} (5,551) (15,817) (15,123) (21,809) (20,674)
Total Noncurrent Assets 3,840 . 3,913 11,610 11,986 15,450 15,899
Total Assets 6,110 5,693 13,376 14,486 19,486 20,179
Deferred Outflows of Revenue
Deferred Loss on Bond Refunding - - 164 178 164 178
Deferred Amounts related to Pensions 207 199 97 94 304 293
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 207 199 261 272 468 471
ILiabilities Due in Less Than One Year
Accounts Payable 132 228 326 1,069 658 1,297
Accrued Liabilities 92 20 97 39 189 59
Customer Deposils - 2 379 356 379 358
Due to Component Unit - - 403 755 403 755
Current Compensated Absences - 2 - - - 2
Current Capital Lease 65 33 307 164 372 197
Current Long-Term Debt - 68 305 539 305 607
Total Current Liabilities 289 353 2,017 2,922 2,306 3,275
“Liahilities Due in More Than One Year
Compensated Absences 127 127 74 73 199 200
Bonds - - 4,175 4,430 4,175 4,480
Notes Payable - - - - - -
Capital Leases 347 381 1,077 1,384 1,424 1,765
Certificates of Obligation - - - - - -
Net Pension Liability - TM RS 1,609 1,400 823 690 2,492 2,090
Net Pension Liability - TESRS 104 60 - - 104 60
Total Long-Term Liabilities: 2,247 1,968 6,149 6,627 8,394 8,595
Total Liabilities 2,536 2,321 §,166 9,549 10,700 11,870
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred Amounts related (o Pensions 51 46 18 15 69 6l
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 51 46 18 15 69 61
Net Position
Invested in Capital Assets 3,427 3,430 5,746 5,420 9,173 8.850
Restricted 363 346 757 - 1,120 346
Unrestricted (60) 251) (1,050) (226) (1,110) 77
Total Net Position 5 3,730 h) 3,525 $ 5,453 5 5,194 ¥ 9,183 $ 8,719
5

The City’s combined Net Position increased by $462,906 , or 5.3%, to $9,182,277 al Seplember 30}, 2016. Comparatively, last vear, the City’s

combined Net Position increased by $583,693, or 7.2%. (See Tablc A-2)
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The City’s Net Posilion for Government Activitics increased by 5.8% Lo $3,729.095 . Unresiricted net position of governmental activities (the
part of net position that can be used to finance day-to-day operations withoul constraints established by debt covenants, enabling legislation, or

other legal requirements) was (60,417).

The city’s Net Position for Business Activities increased by 5.0% [rom $3.453,182 in the prior year to $5,193,498 .

Table A-2
Changes in City's Net Position
(In thousands of dollars)

Governmental Business-type
Activities Aclivilies Toral
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
Program Revenues
Charges for Services 5 295 % 379 s 8220 % 8399 % 8515 5 8778
Operating grants 30 10 - 16 30
Capital grants 41 85 312 795 353 880
General Revenues -
Ad Valorem Taxes 1,489 1,459 - - 1,489 1,459
Sales Tax : 565 561 - 565 561
Franchise Taxes o4 94 - - o4 94
Hotel/ M otel Occupancy Tax 114 161 - - 114 161
Rentals 46 - 9 7 55 7
Interest Income | - 3 2 4 2
Gain/(loss) on Sale of Assels 1 - 2 1 2
Other 36 45 226 229 262 274
Total Revenues 2,688 2,814 8,780 9,434 11,468 12,248
Program Expenses
General Government 1,006 759 - - 1,006 759
Public Safety 1,409 1,404 - - 1,409 1,404
Highways & Streets 433 424 - - 433 424
Health & Welfare 606 74 - - 66 74
Culture & Recreational 561 636 - - 561 686
Interest on LT Debt 19 21 165 - 184 21
Enterprise Activities - - 7,345 8,372 7,345 8,372
Total Expenses 3,494 3,368 7,510 8,372 11,004 11,740
Increase {Decrease) in Net (806) (554 1,270 1,062 464 508
Position Before Transfers
Contributions Between Primary
Government & Component Unit - - - 75 - 75
Transfers In (Oul) 1,010 754 (1,010) (754 - -
Change in Net Position 204 200 260 383 584 583
Net Position - Beginning 3,526 4,609 5,193 5,332 9,940 9,941
Restatement of net position - (1,283) - (522} - (1,805)
Net Position - Beginning as restated 3,526 3,326 5,193 4,810 8,719 8,136
Net Position - Ending $ 3730 $- 3526 § 5453 % 5193 5 9,183 $§ 9,940

Total Revenues for the Cily of Hearne were $11,468,000, a decrease of 6.4%. The Lotal cost of all programs and services decreased by $736,000,
or 6.2% to $ 11,004,000 , over last year’s total of $11,740,000. Overall, Net Position increased by $462,906 w $9,182,277 .



L,

~

R S

R Tt

P

iy

= .

= TR S

PR N

e

Governmental Activities

Revenues for the City’s Governmental Aclivities decreased by 4.4%, or $126,000. The cost of all Governmental Activities increased by $126,000
to $3,494,000, up from last year’s total of $3.368,000.

Business Activities

Revenucs for the Cily’s business activities decreased by 6.9% Lhis year {($8,780,000 compared (o $9,434,000 for last year). Expenses decreased
by [0% this year ($ 7,510,000 compared to $8,372,000 Iast year). .

The City’s management has been taking proactive steps to help with budgetary shortfalls. This is the 6" year that they have collected $0.003 per
kilowat( on electric salcs. $2.00 per water meler, and a sanitation administralive [ee equal to approximately 16.9% (lhe fee varies based upon the
size of garbage cart of dumpster) to strengthen the net position. They have also been collecting $0.47 per 1,000 gallons of waler sold to defray the
cost of the annual water storage tank mairitenance and inspections.

THE CITY’S FUNDS

As the City com'pletcd the year, its governmenlal [unds (as presented in the balance sheet) reported a Governmental Fund Balance of $ 1,730,604
which increased from last year’s total of $1,260,209,

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

During the course of the year, the City revised its budget several times. These budget amendments fall into three categories. The first category
includes amendments and supplemental appropriations which the 4A and the 4B Sales Tux Boards approved and agreed to pay for special
projects. The second category involves unexpected revenue such as asset sales that management decided to use to cover a specific project, or
insurance proceeds that was used to repair the damages covered by the insurance proceeds. The third type includes amendments at the ead of the
year Lo cover any unforeseeable budgel overruns:

Actual revenues were less than the final budgeted amounts by $ 182,310 |, with expenditures coming in $195,058 more than expectations. This
made the overall budget operations fall short of budget by $ 377,368 .

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Table A-3
City's Capital Assets
‘ (Iri thousands of dollars)

Govemnmental Business-type
Activities Acliviligs Total
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
Capital Assets .

Land $ 393§ 393 % 62 3 62 3 455 % 455
Construction in Progress - - 1,235 935 1,235 F 935
Buildings and Improvements 5,422 5,422 2,276 2,276 7,608 7,698
Improvements Other than Buildings 1,472 1,210 - - 1,472 1,210
Equipment : 1,034 a2 201 201 1,235 1,129
Vehicles 1,425 1,425 364 352 1,789 1,777
Furntture and Office Equip ment 86 86 321 315 407 401
Distribution and Collection Sy stems - - 22,968 22,968 22,968 22,9608

Totals at Historical Cost 9,832 © 9,404 27,427 27,109 37,259 36,573

Total Accumulated Depreciation . (5,992) (5,551) (15,817) (15,123) (21,809) (20,674)

Net Capital Assets $ 3840 $ 3913 § 11610 % 11986 $ 15450 §$ 15,899

At the end of 2016, the City had invested $37,573,000 in a broad range of capital assets, including land, buildings, park facilities, roads, bridges,
equipment and vehicles, electric lines, water lines, sewer lines and waste water weatment facilities. (See Table A-3). This amount represents an
increase of $686,000, a 1.8% increase from last year.
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This year’s major additions included (in thousands):

Governmental
Capitalized Improvemcents : Cily Budget 262.0
Machinery & Equipment City Budget 106.0

Business-Type Activities
Improvements TXDOT Airport Development Grant & City Budgetl 300.0
Table A-4

City's Long-Term Debt
(In thousands of dollars)

Governmental Business-type :
Activities Activities Total Change
] 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2015-2016
Long Term - Debt
Bonds S - % - % 4480 % 4780 $ 4480 § 4,780 (300)
Notes Payable - 68 - 238 - 300 (306)
Leases Payable 412 414 1,384 1,548 1,796 1,962 (166)
Total Long-Term Debt $ 412 % 482 % 5864 0§ 6566 % 6276 $ 7048 % (772)

Long-Term Debt

Al year end, the City had $6,276,000 in Long Term Debt outstanding. This included $4.48 million in bonds payable. This compares o $4.78
million in bonds outstanding last year and is a 6.2% reduction in these debt instiruments. (See Table A-4)

Standard & Poor’s upgraded the City’s bond rating of bbb- to A- on March 12, 2010 and again upgraded the rating again from A- 0o A on
November 5, 2010. These actions were taken due to significant improvement in the City’s financial condition. It is unusual for a bond rating to be
raised fwice in such a short time. The City is proud of this accomplishment. The bond rating of A was raised to A+ on 06/26/2014.There has been
no change in the bond rating since this recent upgrade. The Bonds were reissued in March 2011 with a total savings of approximately $3355,000
and present value savings of approximately $275,000,

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGETS AND RATES

The City’s elected and appointed officials considered many factors when selting the fiscal-year 2016-2017 budget, tax rates, and fees that will be
charged for the business-type activities. One of those factors is the economy. The City of Hearne has experienced notable commercial growth for
a city with a population of less than 5,000.

Economic factors influencing the 2016-2017 Budget include the opening of a Chicken Express restaurant, 2 Tractor Supply hardware store, Femna
and the associaled rental of City property projected to bring in an extra $200,000 in income per year, the Magellan East Houston to Hearne
Pipeline which is projected to be a $30 million capital investment 1n 2018, the Valero Heare to Hulio pipeline projected to be 2 $20 million
capital investment in 2019, and Union Pacific is building the 2™ biggest railyard in the United Statcs in Hearne.

The Chicken Express restaurant will increase sales tax revenues for the City of Hearne from cilizens and travelers passing thru and also provide
jobs. '

The Tractor Supply store will also increase sales tax revenues for the City of Hearne and also provide jobs.
The Fema and associated rental of City property is projected to increase revenues by $200,000 per year.

The Magellan East Houston to Hearne pipeline is projected Lo be a $30 million capital investment in 2018 and should bring jobs and increase
revenues for the City of Hearne.

The Valero Hearne to Hutto pipeline is projected to be a $20 million capital investment in 2019 and should bring jobs and increase revenues for
the City of Hearne, .

The Union Pacific Railyard being built should bring jobs and increasc revenues for the City of Hearne.
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The Texas Department of Public Safety entered into an agreement with the City of Hearne to build and iease 2 Commercial Driver License
Testing Facility to the DPS in Hearne. This facility opened in March of 2015 and has had a steady and consistent flow of people secking a Texas
Commercial Driver License.

In 2013, the City of Hearne was awarded a $750,000 TDRA “Capital Funds™ Granl 1o upgrade the infrastructure, i.c., water lines, electric lines,
sewer, Cily streets, and drainage to accommedate the new Nursing Home and Assisted Living Facility. The City also was awarded another Texas
Capital Funds Grant in the amount of $325,000 to assist m upgrading the infrastructure for the molding and trim warehouse. The work on both of
these grants is expected (o be completed by the end of the first quarter of 2016.

The City of Hearne has received multiple grants from TX-DOT-Aviation Division in order o improve the Hearne Municipal Airpert. One of
these grants was approximately $165,000 to install a new Aviation Fuel Facility. The second grant was approximately $575,000 to build a game-
proof perimeler [ence around the airport. The work on the first project was completed and placed in operation in May, 2013. The Aurport has a
stcady flow of Av-Gas customers that fly in from a radius of 100 miles, just (o buy [uel. The fence was completed early in the 2014-2015 Fiscal
Ycar. Both improvements o the airport have been appreciated and camplimented by pilots.

The City of Hearne added a new restawrant, a new hardware store, Fema rental income and 2 pipelines and a Railyard are coming.

These new businesses provide numerous economic berefits to the City of Hearme. Among these benefits arc 1. A broadened property lax base, an
increase local sales (ax, an increase in new jobs [or the cilizens, increased hotel & motel taxes {rom lemporary workers, and a rcason for people
to move o Hearne and become citizens. All of this comes full circle and leads to more businesses coming to Hearne. Other businesses continue
lo show interest in relocating to Hearne. This same growth pattern is also reflected in small, locally owned businesses.

After taking all factors into consideration, the City adopted a $10.8 million budget for Fiscal Year 2016-2017. Broken down, this is $3.7 million
for the General Fund and $7.1 million for the Enterprise Fund. This compares to the inal budget of $3.3 million and $7.9 million respectively for
fiscal year 2015-2016. This new budget is a 12.12% increase for the General Fund and 10.12% decrease for the Enterprise Fund. This provides an
overall decrease of 3.57%

CONTACTING THE CITY’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

The financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors and creditors with a general overview of the City’s
finances and to demonstrate the City’s accountability for the money it receives. If you have any questions about this report or need additional
financial information, contact the City’s Finance Department.
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City of Hearne, Texas
Statement of Net Position
September 30, 2016

Primary Government

Component Unics

Hearne Hearne
Cconomic [nfrastructure /
Governmental Business-Type Development  Improvement
Activitics Activities Total Corporartion Corporalion
Assets
Cash and equivalents % 356,521 $ 255,155 $ 611,676 % - 3 -
Receivables (net of allowance lor
uncollectibles): :
Taxes 419,117 - 419,117 53.569 53,569
Accounts [79,542 1,435,607 1,615,149 ) - -
Grant - 91,115 91,115 -
Internal balances 934 048 (934,048) - 193 485 200518
Due from primary government - - - - -
" Ilnventory - 148,347 148,347 - -
Other assets 18,518 13,063 31,579 - -
Restricted assets: :
Cash and equivalents 362,592 757,379 1,119,971 475,950 603,966
Investments - - - 143,224 ) -
Capital assets:
Non-depreciable 393,082 1,296,609 1,689,691 - -
Depreciable, net 3,446,154 10,313,164 13,759,318 - -
Total assets 6,109,572 13,376,321 19,485,963 866,228 867,053
Deferred outfiows of resources
Loss on bond refunding - 163,593 163,593 - -
Deferred amounts related to pensions 207,36l 97,759 305,120 - -
Total deferred outflows of resources 207,361 261,352 468,713 - -
Liabilities
Accounts payable 132,472 526,088 658,560 43 8,500
Salaries payable 76,506 42,523 119,029 - -
State tax payable - 23,883 23,883 - -
Other accrued liabilities 15,290 30,977 46,267 - -
Due te component unit - 403,003 403,003 - -
Deposits - 379,494 379,494 - -
Delerred Revenue - - -
Long-term liabilities:
Due within one year:

- Compensated absences - - - - -
Capital lease payable 64,916 307,069 371,985 - -
Notes payable - - - - -
Bonds payable - 305,000 305,000 - -

Due in more than one year:
Compensated absences 127,067 73,899 200,966 - -
Capital lease payable 347,400 E,076,758 1,424,158 - -
Bonds payable - 4,175,000 4,175,000 - -
Net pension liability - TMRS 1,669,211 823,091 2,492,302 - -
Net pension Lability - TESRS 103,769 - 103,769 - -
Total liabilities 2,536,031 8,166,785 10,703,416 43 8,500
Deferred inflows of resources .
Deferred amounts related to pensions 51,207 17,776 GR,983 - -
Total deferred inflows of resources 51,207 17,776 68,983 - -
Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 3,426,920 5,745 946 9,172,866 - -
Restricted for-
Court security 98,412 - 98 412 - -
Court technology 32,428 - 32,428 - -
Child salety fund 38,646 - 38.646 - -
Debt Service 64916 757,379 822,295
Tourism 121,100 - 121,100 - -
Police department 7,090 - 7,000 - -
Economic development I - - 866,185 858,553
Unrestricted (60,417 {1,050,143) (1,110,560) - -
Total net position $ 3,729,095 $ 5,453,182 $ 9,182,277 $ 860,185 3 858,353

The notes to the linancial statements are an integral part of this statcment 10
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Assets
Cash and equivalents
Receivables:
Taxes
Accounts
Due fromother funds
Other assets
Restricted assets:
Cash and equivalents

Total assets

Liabilities
Accounts payable
Salaries payable
Accrued liabilities
Deposits
Due to other funds

Total liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Unavailable revenue-property taxes

Fund Balances
Nonspendable
 Prepaid expenses
Restricted for:
Debt service
Court security
Court technology
Fire truck
Child safety fund
Police
Tourism
Unassigned reported in:
General fund

Total fund balances

City of Hearne, Texas
Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
September 30, 2016

Total Total
Nonmajor Governmental

General Funds Funds
$ 356,521 5 - $ 356,521
407,204 11,913 419,117
179,542 - 179,542
934,048 - 034 048
18,516 - 18516
234,402 128,190 362,592
$ 2,130,233 $ 140,103 $ 2270336
$ 117,322 $ 15,150 3 132,472
76,506 - 76,506
15,290 - 15,290
209,118 15,150 224,268
315,464 - 315,464
15,290 - 15,290
64,916 - 64,916
98 412 - 98412
32,428 - 32,428
38,646 - 38,640
- 7.090 7,090
- 117,863 117,863
1,355,959 - 1,353,959
1,605,651 124,953 1,730,604
$ 140,103 $ 2270336

Total liabilities, deferred inflows or resources and fund balances $ 2,130,233

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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City of Hearne, Texas
~ Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position
Governmental Funds
September 30, 2016

Fund balances - total governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position arc
different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities arc not financial resources and
therefore are not reported in the governmental funds:

Governmental capital assets : 9,831,791
Less accumulated depreciation (5,992,495)

Certain taxreceivables are not available to pay for current period expenditures and
arc not reported in the governmental funds balance sheet.

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are
not reported in the governmental funds balance sheet.

Compensated absences (127,067)
Capital lease payable (412,316)
Notes payable -
Net pension liability - TMRS (1,609,211
Net pension liability - TESRS (103,769

Certain deferred inflows and outflows of resources are not reported in the
governmental funds. i

Deferred outflows related to pensions 207,301
Deferred inflows related to pensions (51,207)

Net position of govermmental activities

The notes Lo the financial statements are an inlegral part of this statzment.
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1,730,604

3,839,296

315,464

(2,312,363)

156,094

$ 3,729,095




City of Hearne, Texas
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
: Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended September 30, 2016

Total Total
Nonmajor Governmental
General Funds Funds
Revenues: :
Taxes
Property $ 1,442,960 $ - 3 1,442 960
Sales 564,069 - 564,669
Franchise fees - 93,619 - 93,619
Hotel/motel occupancy - 113,701 (13,701
Intergovernmental - 41,066 12,339 53,405
Licenses and permits 17,940 - 17,540
Property rentals ) 46,069 - 46,069
Fines 270,031 - 270,031
Investment income 829 303 1,132
Private contributicns ) 6,260 - G,260
M iscellaneous 45,157 - 45,157
Tolal revenues ' : 2,528,600 120,343 2,654,943
Expenditures
Current:
General government 611,374 - 611,374
Public safety 1,208,149 - 1,208,149
Highways and streets 315,642 . - 315,642
Health and welfare 66,412 - 66,412
Culture and recreation 446,129 59,290 505,419
Capital outlay 368,009 - 368,009
Debt service: )
Principal 100,812 - 100,812
Interest and fiscal charges 19,482 - 19,482
Total expenditures 3,136,009 59,290 3,195,299
Excess (deficiency ) of revenues over (under)
expenditures (607,409 67,053 (540,356)
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in 1,079,280 - 1,079,280
Transfers out - (68,529} (68,529)
Total other financing sources (uses) 1,079,280 (68,529} 1,010,751
Net change in fund balances 471,871 (1,476) 470,395
Fund balances at beginning of year, as previcusly reported 1,063,780 196,429 1,260,209
Restatement of fund balance, sce Note 16 . 70,000 {70,000) -
Fund balances at beginning of ycar, as restated 1,133,780 126,429 1,260,209
Fund balances at cnd of year $ 1,605,651 $ 124,953 $ 1,730,604

The notes te the financial statements are an integral part of this stalement.
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City of Hearne, Texas
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended September 30, 2016

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds

because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the Statement of
Activities, the cost of these assets is allocated over their estimaled useful lives and reported
as. depreciation expensc:

Expenditures for capital assets 368,009

Depreciation of capital assets (441,197}

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial resources arc
not reported as revenues in the funds and are instead deferred. This amount represents the
net change in unavailable tax revenue.

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial resources are

not reported as revenues in the funds.

Restatemcent of prior period fund balance

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to governmental funds,

while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial
resources of the governmental funds. This amount is the net effect of these differences in

the treatment of long-term debt and related items.

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of current
financial resources and, therefore, are not included as expenditures in governmental funds.

Compensated absences $ 1,881

Capital lease pay able 31,012

470,395

(73,188)

(45,539)

(10,527)
(70,000)

(100,812)

32,893

Change in net position of governmental activities

The noles to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Hearne, Texas

General Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended September 30, 2016

Budgeted Amounts

Variance with
Finul Budget

Criginal Final Actual Over {(Under)
Revenues: o :
Taxes:
Property 1,589,410 1,589,410 1,442,960 (146,450}
Sales 475,000 475,000 564,669 89,669
Franchise [ees 83,500 83,500 03,619 10,119
Licenses and permits 6,400 6,400 17,940 11,540
Property rentals 59,400 59,400 46,069 (13.331)
Fines 337,000 337,000 270,031 (66,969)
Intergovernmental 39,300 39,300 41,006 1,766
Investment income 100 100 8§20 729
Private contributions 15,000 15,000 6,260 (8,740)
Miscellanecus 105,800 [05,800 45,157 (60,643)
Total revenucs 2,710,010 2,710,910 2,528,600 (182,310)
Expenditures:
Current:
General government
Legislative ' 63,184 03,184 72,831 9.647
Executive 217,644 217,644 © 311,426 93,782
Finance 348 468 348,468 310,503 . (37,965)
Court 165,732 165,732 166,442 710
Total general government 795,028 795,028 861,202 66,174
Public Safety
Police 1,119,437 1,119,437 1,150,011 30,574
Fire 147,033 147,033 75,087 (71,946)
Total public safety 1,266,470 ¥ 1,266,470 1,225,098 (41,372)
Highways 515,981 515,981 315,642 (200,339)
Health and welfare
Code enforcement 46,623 46,623 16,137 {30,486)
Animal control 56,869 56,809 50,273 6,594)
Total health and wellare 103,492 103,492 66,412 {37.080)
Culture and recreation:
Library 160,002 160,092 155,443 (4,649)
Parks and recreation 417,455 417,455 349,976 (67,479)
Total culture and recreation 577,547 577,547 505,419 (72,128)
Capital outlay 8,500 8,500 368,009 359,500
Debt Service
Principal - ©o- 100,812 100,812
Intecest - - 19,482 19,482
Total debt service - - 120,254 120,294
Total expenditures 3,267.018 3,267,018 3,462,076 195,058
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditur (556,108} (556,108) (933,476) {377,368)
Other financing sources (uses):
Proceeds [rom long term debt - - 326,007 326,067
Translers in 1,010,751 1,010,751 1,079,280 68,529
Transfers out (451,213) (451,213) - 451,213
Total other financing sources (uses) 559,538 559,538 1,405,347 845,809
Net change in fund balances ’ 3.430 3,430 471,871 468,441
Fund balances at beginning of year, as previously reporte 1,063,780 1,063,780 1,063,780 -
Restatement of fund balance, see Note 16 F0.000 70,000 70,000 -
FFund balances at beginning of year, as restated 1,133,780 1,133,780 1,133,780 -
Fund balances at end of year $1,137,210 - $1,137,210 $ 1,605,651 $ 468,441

The notes to the [inancial statements arc an integral part of this statement.
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City of Hearne, Texas

Statement of Net Position

Proprietary Funds

September 30, 2016
Nonmajor
Fund
Enterprise Municipal
Fund Alrport Fund Total
Assets
Curreni assets
Cash and equivalents § 227,794 5 27,361 5 255,155
Accounts receivable {net of allowance [or uncollectibles) 1,433,910 1,697 1,435,607
Grants receivable 91,115 - 91,113
Inventory 128,464 19,883 148,347
Due from other funds - - -
Other assels 13,063 - 13,063
Resiricted cash 757,379 - 757,379
Total current assets 2,651,725 48,941 2,700,666
Capital assets:
f.and 61,634 - 61,634
Buildings and other improvements 778,842 1,497,552 2,276,394
Distribution and colicction systems 22,968,172 - 22,968,172
Equipment 852,581 33,276 885,857
Construction in progress 1,234,975 - 1,234,975
25,896,204 1,530,828 27,427,032
Less: accumulated depreciation (15,256,301} (560,958) (15,817,259)
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 10,639 903 969,870 11,609,773
Total non-current assets 10,639,903 269,870 11,609,773
Total assels 13,291,628 1,018,811 14,310,439
Deferred outflows of resources
Less on bond refunding [63,593 - 163,593
Deferred amounts related to pensions Q7,759 - 97,759
Total deferred outflows of resources 261,352 - 261,352
Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 524162 1,926 526,088
Salaries payable 42,523 - 42,523
Sales tax payable 23,883 - 23,883
Other accrued liabilities 30,977 - 30,977
Due to other funds 934,048 - 934,048
Due to component units 403,003 - 403,003
Customer deposits payable 379,494 - 379,494
Long-term debt, current 612,069 - 612,069
Total current liabilities 2,950,159 1,926 2,952,085
Long-term liabalities:
Liability for compensated absences, long-term 73,899 - 73,899
Long-term debt, net 5,251,758 - 5,251,758
Net pension liability 823,091 - 823,091
Total long-term liabilities 6,148,748 - 6,148,748
Total liabilitics 9,098,907 1,926 9,100,833
Deferred inflows of resources
Deferred amounts related to pensions 17.776 - 17,776
Total deferred inftows of resources 17.776. - 17,776
Net Position
Net investment in capital asscts 4,776,076 969,870 5,745,946
Restricted [or Debt Service 757,379 757,379
Unrestricted (1,097,158) 47,015 (L;050,143)
Total net position 5 4,436,297 $1,016,885 $ 5,453,182

The noles to the financial statements are an integral part of this slalement
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City of Hearne, Texas

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Proprietary Funds

For the Year Ended September 30, 2016

Enterprise

Nenmajor
Fund

Municipal

Fund Adrport Fund Total
Operating revenues:
Charges for sales and services:
Water sales $ 1,156,413 $ - 51,156,413
Electric sales 5,801,021 - 5,801,021
Sewer charges 582,401 - 582,401
Sanitation - 621,897 - 621,897
Tap fees 1,000 - 1,600
Rental fees 8,800 22,340 31,140
Penalties 115,153 - 115,153
Miscellaneous revenue 167,508 36,201 203,799
Total operating revenues 8,454,193 58,631 3,312,824
Operating expenses:
Wholcsale utilities 3,901,665 - 3,901,665
Water department 415,677 - 415,677
Electric department 445,797 - 445,797
Sewer department 370,639 - 370,639
Sanitation department 539,205 - 539,205
Administrative and billing 413,176 - 013,176
Airport - 55,540 55,540
Depreciation and amortization 583,638 98,714 682,352
Total operating expenses 7,169,797 154,254 7,324,051
Operating income (loss) 1,284,396 {95,623) 1,188,773
Nonoperating revenues (expense): .
Intergovernmental 312,353 - 312,353
Contributions from component unit - - -
Investment income 3,388 - 3,388
(Gain on disposal of capital assets - - -
Interest cxpense (165,550) - (165,550}
Total nonoperating revenues (expense) 150,191 - 150,191
Income (loss) before transfers 1,434,587 (95,623) 1,338,964
Transfers in - - -
Transfers out (1,079,280) - (1,079,280)
Total other financing sources (uses} (1,079,280) - (1,079,280)
Change in net position 355,307 (95,623) 259,684
Net position, beginning of year, as previously reported 4,080,990 1,112,508 5,193,498
Restatement of net position, see Note L6 - -
Net position, beginning of year, as restated 4,080,990 1,112,508 5,193,498
Net position, end of year $ 4,436,297 $1,016,885 $5,453,182

The notes 1o the financial statements are an integral part of this statcment
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‘City of Hearne, Texas
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds

For the Year ended September 30, 2016

Nonmajor
Fund
Enterprise Municipal
Fund Adirport Fund Total
Cash flows fromoperating activities:

Cash received from customers 8,494,879 54,948 8,589,827

Cash payments (o suppliers for goods and services (6,000,306) (67,587) (6,067,893)

Cash payments (o employces for services (722,086) - (722,086)

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activitics 1,772,487 27.361 1,799,848
Cash flows fromnon-capital financing activities

Decrease in bank overdraft - - -

Transfers in 621,149 - 621,149

Transfers out . (1,079,280) - (1,079,280)

Net cash provided by (used in} non-capital financing activitics (458,131) - (458,121
Cash flows fromcapital and related financing activities

Acquisition of capilal assets (305,670) - (305,670)

Proceeds fromdisposal of capital assets - - -

Capital grants 312,353 - 312,353

Interest paid (165,550) - (165,550)

Principal payments (703,103) - (703,103)

Proceeds of long temmdebt issuance - - -

Net cash provided by (used in) capital and related
financing activities (1,489,577) - (1,489,577)
Cash flows frominvesting activities:

Interest on cash and investments 3,388 - 3,388
Net increase (decrease) in cash and equivalents ’ (171,833) 27,361 (144,472)
Cash and equivalents, beginning of year 1,157,006 - 1,157,006
Cash and equivalents, end of year $ 985,173 $ 27361 $1,012.534
Reconciliation of cash and equivalents:

Unrestricted cash and equivalents $ 227794 $ 27361 $ 255,155

Restricted cash and investments 757,379 - 757,379

Total cash and equivalents : $ 085,173 $ 27,361 $ 1,012,534
{continued)

The notes to the financial statements ave an integral part of this statement



City of Hearne, Texas
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended September 30, 2016
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Nonmajor
. Fund
Enterprise Municipal
Fund Airport Fund Total
Reconciliation of operating income {loss) to net
cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
Operaling income {loss) $ 1,284,396 $ (95,624) $1,188,772
Adjustments to recencile te net cash provided by
operating actlvities:
Depreciation and amortization 583,638 - 08,714 682,352
" Bad debt expense _ - - -
Increase {decrease) in cash resulting from
changes in asscts and liabilities: .
Accounts receivable . 298,670 (1,177) 297,493
Inventory (13,265) 2,437 (10,828)
Due from other [unds 325,493 29,691 355,184
Other assets 7,181 5,469 12,650
Deferred outflows related to pensions 10,657 (102) 10,555
Accounts payable (472,071) (12,047 (484,118}
Salaries payable 7,728 - 7,728
Sales tax payable 83 - 83
Accrued liabilities (8,276) - (8,276
Due to other funds (59,497 - (59,497)
Due to cmponent units (351,988) - (351,988)
Customer deposits 23,255 - 23,255
Liability for compensated absences 997 - 997
Net pension liability 132,711 - 132,711
Deferred inflows related to pensions 2,075 - 2,775
Net cash provided by (used in} operating activities $ 1,772,487 $ 27361 $ 1,799,848

The notes to the financial stalements are an integral part of this statcment.
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City of Hearne, Texas
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2016

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements of the City of Hearne, Texas (the City) have been prepared in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to government
units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting
body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting prmmples The City’s
more significant accounting policies are described below.

A. Reporting Entity

The City is a home-rule city governed by an elected mayor and a five-member council. The
City operates under a Council-Manager form of government, established by City charter. As
required by generally accepted accounting principles, these financial statements present the
City (the primary government) and its component units, entities for which the government is
considered to be financially accountable. Each discretely presented component unit is reported
in a separate column in the government-wide financial statements to empha31ze that it is legally
separate from the government.

Discretely Presented Component Units

The Hearne Economic Development Corporation is a non-profit corporation created under
Section 4A of the Development Corporation Act of 1979. The Corporation receives one-half of
one percent of local sales tax collected, which is used to promote economic development
within the City. The Corporation is governed by a Board of Directors that is appointed by the
City Council. ' -

The Hearne Infrastructure/Improvement Corporation is a non-profit corporation created under
Section 4B of the Development Corporation Act of 1979. The Corporation receives one-half of
one percent of local sales tax collected, which is used to promote economic development within
the City. The Corporation is governed by a Board of Directors that is appointed by the City
Council.

B. Basis if Presentation
Government-wide financial statements

The Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities display information about the
reporting government as a whole. They include all funds of the reporting entity. The effect of
interfund activity, other than interfund services provided and used within the governmental and -
business-type activities, has been removed from these statements. The statements distinguish
between governmental and business-type activities. Governmental activities are generally
financed through taxes intergovernmental revenues, and other non-exchange revenues.
Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties for
goaods or services.

The government-wide statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct
expenses of a functional category (General Government, Public Safety, etc.) are offset by
program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly -identifiable with a specific
function or segment. Program revenues include charges to customers or applicants who
purchase, use, or
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Directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment;
grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational requirements of a
particular function or segment; and grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the
capital requirements of a particular function or segment.

Fund financial statements

Fund financial statements of the reporting entity are organized into funds, each of which is
considered to be separate accounting entities. Each fund is accounted for by providing a
separate set of self-balancing accounts that constitute its assets, liabilities, fund equity,
revenues, and expenditures/expenses. Funds are organized into two major categories;
governmental and proprietary. An emphasis is placed on major funds within the governmental
and proprietary categories. A fund is considered major if it is the primary operating fund of the
City or meets the following criteria:

a. Total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of that individual governmental
or enterprise fund are at least 10 percent of the corresponding total for all funds of that
category or type; and

b. Total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of the individual governmental
fund or enterprise fund are at least 5 percent of the corresponding total for all governmental
and enterprise funds combined.

The funds of the financial reporting entity are described below:
Governmental Funds

General Fund

The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the city and is always classified as a major
fund. It 1s used to account for all activities except those legally or administratively required to
be accounted for in other funds.

Other Governmental Funds

Other Governmental Funds is a summation of all of the non-major governmental funds.
Proprietary Funds

Enterprise Fund

This fund is used to account for the operations of the City’s utility systems, which include
water, electric, sewer, and sanitation services.

Municipal Airport Enterprise Fund

This fund is a non-major enterprise fund, used to account for the operations of the City’s
municipal airport. '
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City of Hearne, Texas
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2016

C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

Measurement focus 1s a term used to describe which transactions are recorded within the various
financial statements. Basis of accounting refers to when transactions are recorded regardless of the
measurement focus applied:

Measurement Focus

In the government-wide Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, both
governmental and business-like activities are presented using the economic resources measurement
focus as defined in item b below.

In the fund financial statements, the current financial resources measurement focus or the
economic resources measurement focus is used as appropriate:

a. All governmental funds utilize a current financial resources measurement focus. Only current
financial assets and liabilities are generally included on their balance sheets. Their operating
statements present sources and uses of available spendable financial resources during a given
period. These funds use fund balance as their measure of available spendable financial
resources at the end of the period.

b. The proprietary funds utilize an economic resources measurement focus. The accounting
objectives of this measurement focus are the determination of operating income, changes in net
position (or cost recovery), financial position, and cash flows. All assets and liabilities (whether
current or noncurrent) associated with their activities are reported. Propﬂetary fund equity is
classified as net position.

Basis of Accounting

In the government-wide Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities, both governmental
and business-like activities are presented using the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual
basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when the
liability is incurred or economic asset used. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets, and liabilities
resulting from exchange and exchange-like transactions are recognized when the exchange takes
place.

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds are presented on the modified accrual basis of
accounting. Under this modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when
measurable and available. Measurement means knowing or being able to reasonably estimate the
amount. Available means collectible within the current period or within sixty days after year end.
Property, sales, and gross receipt tax revenues of governmental funds are recognized under the
susceptible to accrual concept. Licenses and permits, charges for services, fines, contributions and

miscellaneous revenues are recorded when received in cash, as these revenues are not measurable

and available until cash is received. Investment income is recorded as earned since it is measurable
and available. Expenditures (including capital outlay) are recorded when the related fund liability is
incurred, except for general obligation bond principal and interest which are reported when due.
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The proprietary funds utilize the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis of accounting,
revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when the liability is incurred or
economic asset is used. Operating revenues and expenses for proprietary funds include activities
related to providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary
fund’s principal ongoing operations. Revenues and expenses that do not meet this definition are
reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

D. Budgets

Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for the general fund, special revenue funds, except Police
Special fund, and proprietary funds. The budgets for all funds are prepared and adopted on a basis
consistent with generally accepted accounting principles, which is the same basis of accounting
used for financial reporting in these financial statements. Budgets are adopted by passage of a
budget ordinance. All annual budget appropriations lapse at fiscal year-end.

Encumbrance accounting is a system under which purchase orders, contracts, and other
commitments for the expenditure of funds are recorded to reserve that portion of the applicable
appropriation. Encumbrances are reported as reservations of fund balances since they do not
constitute expenditures or liabilities. The City does not employ encumbrance accounting as it feels
its current system is adequate to assure effective budgetary control and accountability and to
facilitate effective cash planning and control.

E. Cash and Investments

For the purpose of the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Cash Flows, “Cash and cash
equivalents” consists of cash on hand, amounts in demand deposit accounts and interest-bearing
checking accounts, as well as certificates of deposits and investments with maturities of there
months or less.

State statutes authorize the City to invest in time deposits of its designated depositories, U.S.
Government Securities, and Iocal government investment pools. Investments are carried at fair
value. Interest income and changes in fair value are reported as investment income.

Cash equivalents include investments in the local government investment poot, TexSTAR. TexStar
is privately managed, was organized in conformity with the Interlocal Cooperation Act and is
managed in compliance with the Texas Public Funds Investment Act. The fair value of the
investment pools approximates cost. The fair value of the City’s position in the external investment
pool is the same as the value of the pool shares.

F. Short-term Interfund Receivables/Payables

During the course of operations, numerous fransactions occur between individual funds for
goods provided or services rendered. These receivables and payables are classified as “due
from other funds” and “due to other funds,” respectively, on the fund financial statements.
Residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities
are reported in the government-wide financial statements as “internal balances”.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2016

G. Inventories

Inventories of enterprise funds are valued at cost using the first-in/first-out (FIFO)} method.
Inventories of governmental funds are recorded as expenditures when purchased.

H. Restricted Assets

Amounts in governmental funds which are legally identified for specific purposes either by City
ordinance or contractual obligation are reflected as restricted assets. When both restricted and
unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the government’s policy to use the restricted
resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

Amounts in proprietary funds restricted for Community Development Block Grant Program are
also included as restricted assets.

I. Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets, are reported in
the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial
statements and in the fund financial statements for proprietary funds.

The City defines capital assets as assets with an estimated useful life greater than one year and an
initial individual cost of $5,000 or more for land, machinery or equipment, buildings or
improvements other than buildings. All capital assets are valued at historical ocst of estimated
historical cost if the actual historical cost is unavailable, except for donated capital assets which are
recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of donation. Interest incurred during construction
is not capitalized. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the
asset or materially extend asset lives are not capitalized. Improvements are capitalized and
depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the related capital assets, as applicable.

Infrastructure assets (such as roads, bridges, curbs, and gutters, streets and sidewalks, and drainage
systems) purchased before October 1, 2003 have not been capitalized and are excluded from capital
assets of governmental activities.

Depreciation of all exhaustible capital assets is recorded as an allocated expense in the Statement
of Activities, with accumulated depreciation reflected in the Statement of Net Position.
Depreciation is provided over the assets’ estimated useful lives using the straight-line method of
depreciation over the following estimated useful lives:

Buildings ' 10-50 years
[nfrastructure 10-40 years
Improvements other than buildings 10-50 years
Machinery and equipment 5-15 years

In the fund financial statements, capital assets used in governmental operations are accounted for
capital outlay expenditures of the governmental fund at the time of acquisition. Capital assets used
in proprietary fund operations are accounted for the same as in the government-wide statements
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2016

J. Compensated Absences

Compensated absences are those absences for which employees will be paid, such as vacation and sick
leave. A liability for compensated absences that are attributable to services already rendered and that
are not coniingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the City and its employees is accrued
as employees earn the rights to the benefits. Compensated absences that relate to future services or that
are contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the City and its employees are accounted
for in the period in which such services are rendered or in which such events take place.

In the governmental fund financial statements, compensated absences that are expected to be liquidated
with expendable available financial resources are reported as an expenditure and fund liability in the
fund that will pay for the compensated absences. Therefore, a liability for these amounts is recognized
only If they have matured, for example, as a result of employee resignations and retirements. In the
government-wide and -proprietary fund financial statements compensated absences are accrued as
incurred. : :

K. Long-term Obligations

The accounting treatment for long-term debt depends on whether the assets are used in governmental
fund operations or proprietary fund operations and whether they are reported in the government-wide or
fund financial statements.

Long-term debt is recognized as a liability of a governmental fund when due. For other long-term
obligations, only that portion expected to be financed from expendable available financial resources is
reported as a fund liability of a governmental fund. The remaining portion of such obligations is
reported in the governmental activities column of the government-wide Statement of Net Position.
Long-term liabilities expected to be financed from proprietary fund operations are accounted for in
those funds.

L. Fund Equity

Government-wide statements

- Equity is classified as net position and displayed in three components:

a. Net investment in capital assets — consists of capital assets including restricted capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes
or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those
assets.

b. Restricted net position — consists of net position with constraints placed on the use either by (1)
external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other
governments; or 92} law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

c. Unrestricted net position — all other net position that do not meet the definition of “restricted” or
“invested in capital assets, net of related debt.”

Fund statements

Proprietary fund equity is classified the same as in the government-wide statements. Governmental
fund equity is classified as fund balance. Fund balance is further classified as Nonspendable; restricted,
committed, assigned, and/or unassigned.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2016

Classification of fund balances

The Nenspendable fund balance includes the portion of net resources thal cannot be spend because of
their form or because they must be maintained intact. Resources not in spendable form include supplies
inventories and prepaid items, long-term advances to other funds net of deferred interest revenue, long-
term receivable net of deferred interest revenue, nonfinancial assets held for resale, and unrealized
change in the fair value of investments. -

Some resources are spendable but are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. Such
resources include the principal of an endowment.

The restricted fund balance includes net resources that can be spent only for the specific purposes
stipulated by constitution, external resource providers (creditors, grantors, contributors), laws and
regulations of other governments, or through enabling legislation. The enabling legislation authorizes
the City to assess, levy. charge or otherwise mandate payment of resources from external resource
providers; those resources can be used only for the specific purposes stipulated in the legislation. The
City’s revenue generated through enabling legislation includes municipal court fees. '

The committed fund balance includes spendable net resources that can only be used for specific
purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by formal Council actions, no later than the close of the fiscal
year. Those constraints remain binding unless removed or changed in the same manner employed to
previously commit those resources.

The assigned fund balance includes amounts that are constrained by the City’s intent to be used for
specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed. Such intent should be expressed by the City
Council or its designated officials to assign amounts to be used for specific purposes, but are neither
restricted nor committed. Constraints imposed on the use of assigned amounts can be removed with no
formal Council actions. The assigned fund balance is only reported in the General fund.

The unassigned fund balance represents spendable net resources that have not been restricted,
committed, or assigned to specific purposes.

Spending prioritization in Using Available Resources

When both restricted resources and other resources (i.e., committed, assigned, and unassigned) can be
used for the same purpose, the City budget considers restricted resources to be spend first.

When committed, assigned, and unassigned resources can be used for the same purpose, the flow
assumption in the City budget is to spend in-the sequence of committed resources first, assigned second,
and unassigned last.

M. Interfond Transfers

Interfund services provided and used are accounted for as revenues, expenditures, or expenses.
Transactions that constitute reimbursements to a fund for expenditures/expenses initially made from it
that are properly applicable to another fund are recorded as expenditures/expenses in the reimbursing
fund and as reductions in expenditures/expenses in the fund that is reimbursed.,
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All other interfund transactions, except interfund services provided and used and reimbursements, are
reported as transfers.

N. Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows or resources and deferred inflows
of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the Fiduciary Net Position of
the Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS) and the Texas Emergency Services Retirement
System (TESRS) and additions to / deductions from TMRS’s and TESRS’s Fiduciary Net Position have
been determined on the same basis as they are reported by TMRS and TESRS. For this purpose, plan
contributions are recognized in the period that compensation is reported for the employee, which is
when contributions are legally due. Benefit payments and refunds are recognized when due and payable
in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

0. Post-employment Benefits

The City participates in the cost sharing multiple-employer defined benefit group-term life insurance
plan operated by the Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS) known as the Supplemental Death
Benefits Fund (SDBF). The City elected, by ordinance, to provide group-term life insurance coverage
to both current and retired employees. The City may terminate coverage under and discontinue
participation in the SDBF by adopting an ordinance before November 1 or any year to be effective the
following January 1.

Note 2. Legal Compliance — Budgets

In June of each year, all departments of the City submit requests for appropriations to the City Manager
so that a budget may be prepared. The City Manager has ultimate responsibility for the budget and
formulates the budget goals for the City under the direction of the City Council. The budget is prepared

“by fund, function, activity, and object, and includes information on the past year, current year estimates,

and requested appropriations for the next fiscal vear.

In compliance with the state’s uniform budget law, the City Manager files the proposed budget with the
City Secretary and City Council before the 30" day prior to the date the City adopts its tax levy for the
fiscal year. Once filed, the proposed budget is available for inspection by the public. The City is
required-to hold a public hearing on the proposed budget not less than 15 days after the budget is filed
with the City Secretary and prior to the date the Council makes the tax levy. The City publishes notice
of the public hearing in the official newspaper not more than 30 days nor less than 10 days before the
hearing. Once the hearing is concluded and before adopting the proposed budget, the Council may
make any changes it constders warranted by law or in the best interest of the taxpayers. The annual
operating budget is then adopted through passage of an annual budget ordinance. Upon approval by the
Council, the annual budget document becomes a matter of public record which is available for use and
inspection by all interested persons and organizations. It is filed with the City Secretary.
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The legal level of budgetary control is the department. Therefore, expenditures may not legally exceed
budget appropriations at the department level. Each department head, with the approval of the City
Manager, can reclassify items within the department without approval of the Council. However, to
amend the total of a department a budget amendment enacted by City ordinance is required.

Note 3. Deposits and Investments

The City maintains a cash pool that is available for use by the general, special revenue, and enterprise
tunds. At year end, several of the funds had overdrawn their share of the funds in the pool. The amounts
overdrawn are presented on the combined balance sheet as payables to other funds. The city conducts
all its banking transactions with its depository bank, SouthStar Bank. '

As of September 30, 2016, the City had investments in TexStar with maturities less than 60 days with a
fair value of $628,504.

Interest rate risk

The investment policies of the City limit interest rate risk exposure by limiting investments primarily to
certificates of deposits and local government investments pools.

Custodial credit risk

Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution, the
govemnment’s deposits may not be returned to it. The City has a depository policy for custodial risk
incorporated into its depository contract. Deposits of the City are insured or collateralized with
securities held by the City, its agent, or by the pledging financial institution’s trust department or agent
in the name of the City.

Credit risk

It 1s the government’s policy to limit its investments to local government investment pools, TesSTAR,
or certificates of deposit. As of September 30, 2016, the City had investments in local government
investment pools and certificates of deposit. TexSTAR was rated AAAm by Standard & Poor’s as of
September 30, 2016.
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Note 4, Restricted Assets

At September 30, 2016, restrictions on cash and investments were as follows:

Hearne Hearne
Economic Infrastructure/
Governmental Proprietary Development Improvement
Funds Funds Corporation Corporation
Cash and Tnvestments
Restricted for:
Hotel/motel expenditures $ 121,100 % - 3 - % -
Police Special : 7,090 - - -
Interest and sinking 64916 757,379 - -
Child Safety 38,646 - - -
Court security 08,412 - - -
Court technology 32,428 . - -
Community Develop ment
Block Grant Program - - - -
Meter Sinking - - - -
Econemic Develop ment - - 866,185 858,553
$ 362,592 § 757,379 % 866,185 % 838,553
Note 5. Receivables
Receivables at September 30, 2016, consist of the following:
Governmental Funds Proprietary Funds
Receivables:
Taxes
Property $ 315464  $ -
Sales 103,652
Hotel/motel occupancy 11,913
Accounts 179,542 3,013,364
Grants - 91,115
Less:
Allowance for uncollectibles 11,912 (1,577,757)
Nel total receivables $ 622483 % 1,526,722

Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of February 1. Taxes are levied on October 1 and
are payable by January 31. After which time they become delinquent, and penalties and interest may be
assessed by the City.

Property taxes are collected and remitted to the city by the Robertson County Tax Assessor-Collector. The
Robertson County Appraisal District appraises property values for the City. Property taxes are levied by
October 1, in conformity with Subtitle E, Texas Property Code. Current taxes become delinquent on
February 1 following the tax year. On January 1 of each year a tax lien attaches to property to secure the
payment of all taxes, penalties and interest ultimately imposed. For the 2016 tax roll, the assessed
valuation was $209,173,622 and the net taxable value was $202,066,941. The tax rate was $0.71039 per
$100 valuation. This resulted in a total tax levy of $1,407,091. Delinquent property taxes receivable at
September 30, 2016 were $209,215 and current property taxes receivable were $78,657.
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Note 6. Capital Assets

The following is a summary of capital asset activity during the year ended September 30, 2016:

Beginning Additions/ Retirements/ Ending
Balance Completions Adjustments Balance
Governmental acrivitics
Capital assets not being depreciated
Land $ 393,082 % - $ 393,082
Construction in progress - - -
Total capital assels not being depreciated 393,082 - 303,082
Capital assets being depreciated
Buildings 5,421,966 - 5,421,966
Improvements other than buildings 1,210,096 262,021 1,472,117
Furnitiure and fixtures 85,601 - 85,661
Vehicles 1,424,830 - 1,424,830
Machinery and equipment 928,147 05,988 1,034,135
Total at historical cost 9,070,700 368,009 9,438,709
Less: accumulated depreciation for:
Buldings : 3,362,382 86,661 3,449,043
Improvements other than buildings 625,472 161,076 786,548
Furniture and fixiures 27,892 15,527 43,419
Vehicles 949,920 121,842 [,671,762
Machinery and equipment 385,632 56,091 641,723
Total accumulated depreciation 5,551,298 441,197 5,992,495
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 3,519,402 (73,188} 3,446,214
Governmental activities capital assets, net $ 3,912,484 $ (73,188) $ 3,839.296
Business-Lvpe activities
Capital assets not being depreciated
Land 3 61,634 5 - 3 61,634
Construction in progress 934,980 299,995 1,234 975
Total capital assets not being depreciated 996,614 209,995 1,296,609
Capital assets being depreciated
Buildings and improvements 2,276,394 - 2,276,304
Furniture and fixtures 315,192 5,675 320,867
Vehicles 364,357 - 364,357
Distribution and collection systems 22,968,172 - 22,968,172
Machinery and equipment 200,633 - 200,633
Total at historical cost 26,124,748 5,675 26,130,423
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements 672,755 24,351 697,106
Furniture and Fixtures 278,738 12,724 291,462
Vehicles 204,144 31.421 235,565
Distribution and collection systems 13,829, 692 610,777 14,440,469
Machinery and equipment 149,578 3,079 152,657
Total accumulated depreciation 15,134 907 682,352 15,817,259
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 10,989,841 {676,677 10,313,164

Business-type activities capital assets, net

311,986,455

$ (376,682)

511,609,773
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Depreciation expense was charged as direct expense to programs of the primary government as follows:

General government 3 89,211
Public safely 179,196
Highways and streets 117,402
Culture and recrcation ’ 55,388
Total deprecidtion expense - Governmental activities $ 441,197

Note 7. Risk Management

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related (o torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of assets;
errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The City participates in the Texas
Municipal League Intergovernmental Risk Pool for its insurance and pays a quarterly premium to the
Pool. The Pool is intended to be self-sustaining through member premiums and reinsures through
commercial companies for excessive claims. Settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded
commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

Note 8. Long-term Debt

The following is a summary of long-term debt transactions of the City for the year ended September 30,
2016:

Balance ' Balance Due Within
5/30/2015 Additions  Retirements = 9/30/2016 One Year Long Term

Governmental activities

Lease payable - Oshkosh $ 413914 § 31,012 § (32,6i0) $ 412,316 ‘ $ 64916 3 347,400
Subtotal of leases payable 413,914 31,012 (32,610) 412,316 64,916 347,400
SouthStar Bank - Equipment 68,202 - (68,202 - - -
Subtotal of notes payable 68,202 (68,202) - - -

§ 482,116 $ 31,012 §(100,812) % 412,316 § 64,916 $ 347,400

Business-type activities

Lease payable - Southside $ 1,189,680 % - $(109,760) $1,079,920 § 205,318 $ 874,602
Lease payable - AEP 358,302 - (54,395 303,907 101,751 202,156
Subtotal of leases payable 1,547,982 - (164,155 1,383,827 307,069 1,076,758
2011 General obligation refundin 4,780,000 - (300,060) 4,480,000 305,000 4,175,000
Subtotal of bonds payable 4,780,000 - (300,000). 4,480,000 305,000 4,175,000
SouthStar Bank - Equipment 238,648 - (238,948) - oo- -
Subtotal of notes payable 238,948 - (238,948) - - -
$6,566,930 % - $(703,103) $5,863,827 $ 612,069 $5,251,758
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September 30, 2016
The annual aggregate maturities for each debt type for the years subsequent to September 30, 2106 are as
tollows:
Busmess-type Aclivitics Governmentlal Aclivities
Year ending Bonds Payable Notes Payable Notes Payable
September 320 Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Intercst
2017 "305.,000 145,310
2018 310,000 138,465 - - - -
2019 325,000 130,598 - - - -
2020 335,000 121,599 - - - -
2021 376,000 86,572 - - - -
2022-2025 1,504,000 346,286 - - - -
2026-2030 1,325,000 79,815 - - - -
4,480,000 1,048,645 - - - -

On March 1, 2011, the City issued $5,905,000 of general obligation refunding bonds-to provide resources
to refund its Combination Tax and Waterworks and Sewer System Surplus Revenue Certificates of
obligation, Series, 2004, in advance of their maturities. As a result, the refunded bonds are considered
defeased and the liability has been removed from the business-type activities columns of the Statement of

Net Position.

During the year ended September 30, 2016, the following changes occurred in other long-term liabilities:

Governmental activitics

Compensated absences

Business-type activities

Compensated absences

Balance Additions Balance Duc Within
9/30/2015 (Reductions) 9/30/2016 One Year
$ 128,948 $ (1,881) h 127,067 $ -
$ 72,902 $ 997 $ 73,899 ¥ -

The general fund has typically been used to liquidate the liability for compensated absences for
governmental activities, while the enterprise fund has been used to liquidate the liability for business-type

activities.

Note 9, Leases

The City has entered into several lease agreements to finance the acquisition of vehicles and equipment
and a lease agreement to finance the acquisition of an electric substation. These lease commitments
qualify as capital leases for accounting purposes, and therefore have been recorded at the present value of
their future minimum lease payments as of inception date.
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The assets acquired through the capital leases are as follows:

Governmental Business-type
Asset Class _ Aclivities Activities
Vehicles 3 507,985 3 -
Distribution and collection system - 2,453,435
Cost basis 507,985 2,453 435
Less: Accumulated depreciation (101,596) (895,914)
Total net asset $ 406,389 $ 1,557,521

The total future minimum lease payments and the net present value of
September 30, 2016 were as follows:

these minimum payments as of

Year ending Governmental Business-type
September 30 Activities Activities
207 48,000 307,069
2018 48,000 438,378
2019 48,000 173,545
2020 48,000 173,545
2021 48,000 126,788
2022-2025 _ 192,000 507,152
2026-2030 ‘ 24,000 -
Total minimum lease payments 456,000 1,726,477
Less: Amount representing interest (98,0806) (485,564)
Present value of minimum payments 5 357,914 $ 1,240,913

Amortization expense is included in depreciation expense of the Enterprise fund.

Note 10. Interfund Receivables and Payables

Interfund receivables and payables, all of which are considered short-term, at September 30, 2016, were

as follows:
Due from Due to
Name of Fund other funds other funds

Governmental:

Ceneral $ 934048 % -

Non-Major Governmental - -
Business-Type:

Enterprise Fund - 934,048

Non-Major Business-Type

$ 934048 %

934,048

The interfund balances primarily result from the overdraft positions in
Generally, amounts are cleared within the following vear.
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Note 11. Interfund Transfers

Interfund transfers during the year ended September 30, 2016, were as foliows:

Transfers in

Ceneral
Fund Enterprise Total
Transfers out
General : $ -5 68529 3 68,525
Enterprise 1,0079,280 - 1,079,280

$  L079280 % 68520 $ 1,147.809

Transfers are made between the governmental funds and the enterprise funds in lieu of franchise fees,
overhead allocations, and for debt service payments.

Note 12. Commitments
The City entered into an amended contract with AEP Energy Partners, Inc., to provide wholesale

electricity. The contract will expire December 31, 2022. After the expiration, the contract is renewable

upon mutual agreement. The City paid $3,901,665 to this company during the year ended September 30,
2016.

The City entered into a contract with a company to collect commercial and residential garbage within the
City. The contract will expire on December 1, 2016. The City paid $539,205 to this company during the
year ended September 30, 2016.

Note 13. Pension Plans

Texas Municipal Retirement System

A. Plan Description

The City participates as one of 860 plans in the nontraditional, joint contributory, hybrid defined benefit
pension plan administered by the Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS). TMRS is an agency
created by the State of Texas and administered in accordance with the TMRS Act, Subtitle G, Title 8,
Texas Government Code (the TMRS Act) as an agent multiple-employer retirement system for municipal
employees in the State of Texas. The TMRS Act places the general administration and management of the
System with a six-member board of Trustees. Although the Governor, with the advice and consent of the
Senate, appoints the Board, TMRS is not fiscally dependent on the State of Texas. TMRS’s defined
benefit pension plan is a tax-qualified plan under Section 401{a) of the Internal Revenue Code. TMRS

issues a publicly available comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) that can be obtained at
WWW.UmTS.com.

All eligible employees of the city are required to participate in TMRS.
B. Benefits Provided

TMRS provides retirement, disability, and death benefits. Benefit provisions are adopted by the
governing body of the city, within the options available in the state statutes governing TMRS.
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At retirement the benefit is calculated as if the sum of the employee’s contributions, with interest, and the
city-financed monetary credits with interest were used to purchase an annuity. Members may choose to
receive their retirement in one of seven payment options. Members may also choose to receive a portion
of their benefit as a Partial Lump Sum Distribution in an amount equal to 12, 24, or 36 monthly
payments, which cannot exceed 75% of the member’s deposits and interest.

Plan provisions for the City were as follows:

Plan Year 2016 Plan Year 2015 Plan Year 2014

Employee deposit rate 7% 7% 7%

Matching ratio (city to employee) 2ol 2101 2to 1

Years required for vesting 5 5 5

Service retirement elighiity 60/5, 0120 60/5.0120 60/5,0/20
{expressed as agefyears of service)

Updated Service Credit 100% repeating, transfers ~ 100% repeating, transfers 100% repeating, transfers
annuity Increase (to retirees) 70% of CPI repeating 70% of CPI repeating 70% of CP1 repeating

Employees covered by benefif terms.

At the December 31, 2015 valuation and measurement date, the following employees were covered by the
benefit terms.

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits ' 25
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 36
Active employees 54

C. Contributions

The contribution rates for employees in the TMRS are either 5%, 6%, or 7% of employee gross earnings,
and the city matching percentages are either 100%, 150%, or 200%, both as adopted by the governing
body of the city. Under the state law governing TMRS, the contribution rate for each city is determined
annually by the actuary, using the Entry Age Normal (EAN) actuarial cost method. The actuarially
determined rate. is the additional amount necessary to finance the cost of benefits earned by employees
during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability.

Employees for the City were required to contribute 7% of their annual gross earnings during the fiscal
year. The contribution rates for the City were 14.19% and 15.37% in calendar years 2015 and 2016,
respectively. The city’s contributions to TMRS for the year ended September 30, 2016, were $317,483,
and were equal to the required contributions.

D. Net Pension Liability
The City’s Net Pension Liability (NPL) was measured as of December 31, 2015, and the Total Pension

Liability {I'PL) used to calculate the Net Position Liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of
that date. ‘
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Actuarial assumptions:

The Total Pension Liability in the December 31, 2015 actuarial valuation was determined using the
following actuarial assumptions:

Inflation 2.5% per year

Overall payroll growth 3.0% per year

Investment Rate of 6.75%, net of pension plan investment expense, including
Retum inflation

Salary increases were based on a service-related table. Mortality rates for active members, retirees, and
beneficiaries were based on the gender-distinct RP2000 Combined Healthy Mortality Table, with male
rates multiplied by 109% and female rates multiplied by 103%. Based on the size of the City, rates are
multiplied by a factor of 100.0%. The rates are projected on a fully generational basis by scale BB to
account for future mortality improvements. For disabled annuitants, the gender-distinct RP2000 Disabled
Retiree Mortality Table is used, with slight adjustments.

Actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2015, valuation were based on the results of actuarial
experience studies. The experience study in TMRS was for the period January 1, 2010 through December
31, 2014, first used in the December 31, 2015 valuation. Healthy post-retirement mortality rates and
annuity purchase rates were updated based on a Mortality Experience Investigation Study covering 2009
through 2011, and dated December 31, 2013. These assumptions were first used in the December 31,
2013 valuation, along with a change to the Entry Age Normal (EAN) actuarial cost method. Assumptions
are reviewed annually. No additional changes were made for the 2015 valuation.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments is 6.75%. The pension plan’s policy in
regard to the allocation of invested assets is established and may be amended by the TMRS Board of
Trustees. Plan assets are managed on a total return basis with an emphasis on both capital appreciation as

well as the production of income, in order to satisfy the short-term and long-term funding needs of
TMRS.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block
method in which best estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of
pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are
combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of
return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target allocation and

best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following
table:
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Asset Class

Target Allocation

Long-Term Expected Real Rate

of Return (Arithmetic)

Domestic Equity 17.5% 4.80%
International Equity 17.5% 6.05%
Core-Fixed Income 30.0% 1.50%
Non-Core Fixed Income 10.0% 3.50%
Real Return 5.0% 1.75%
Real Estate 10.0% 5.25%
Absolute Return 5.0% 4.25%
Private Equity 5.0% 8.50%
Total 100.0%
Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.75%. The projection of cash flows used
to determine the discount rate assumed that employee and employer contributions will be made at the
rates specified in statute. Based on that assumption, the pension plan’s Fiduciary Net Position was
projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive
employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to
all period of projected benefit payments to determine the Total Pension Liability.

Changes in the Net Pension Liability

Balance at December 31, 2014
Changes for the year
Service Cost
Interest
Change of benefit terms
Difference between expected & actual experience
Changes of assumptions
Contributions - employer
Contributions - employec
Net investment income

Benefil payments, including refunds of employee contributions

Administrative expense
Other charges
Net charges
Balance at December 31, 2015

Increase (Decrease)

Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pension
Liability Net Position Liability
(a) (b (2)-(b)
$ 7398039 % 5,307,582 % 2,090,457
314,396 - 314,396
518,420 - 518,420
14,664 - 14,664
19,367 - 19,367
- 317,483 (317,483)
- 144,692 (144,692}
- 7.833 (7,833}
(298.473) (298,473) -
- {4,770) 4,770
- (236) 236
$ 568,374 % 166,529 401,845
$ 7966413 % 5474111 2,492,302

Sensitivity of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate

The following presents the net pension liability of the City, calculated using the discount rate of 6.75%, as
well as what the City’s net position liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-
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Sensitivity of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate (confinued)

percentage-point lower (6%) or |L-percentage-point higher (8%} than the current rate.

1% Decrease in ' 19 Increase in
Discount Rate (6%) Discount Rate (7%) Discount Rate (8%)

City's net pension liability $ 3,706,450 $ 2,492 302 $ 1,507,940
Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position '

Detailed information about the pension plan’s Fiduciary Net Position is available in a separately-issued TMRS
financial report. That report may be obtained on the Internet at www.tmrs.com.

E. Pension B Expense and Deferred Qutfiows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to
Pensions.

For the year ended September 30, 2016, the City recognized pension expense of $399,441.

At September 30, 2016, the city reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows or resources
related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
_ Outflows of Resources Inflows or Resources
Differences between expected and actual
€CONnoMmic experience $ 11,043 $ 45,422
Difference between projected and actual
investment earnings- 50,203 -
Conltributions subsequent to the measurement
date ) 235,003 -
5 296,249 3 45,422

$ 235,003 reported as deferred outflows or resources related to pensions resulting from contributions
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability for the year
ending September 30, 2016. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to
pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year ended September 30

2016 ' 77,842
2017 79,976
2018 : 93,693
2019 73,157
2020 '

T hereafter
Total % 324,668

Texas Emergency Services Retirement System

A. Plan Description

The City participates in a cost-sharing multiple employer pension plan that has a special funding situation. The
plan is administered by the Texas Emergency Services Retirement System (TESRS) established and
administered by the State of Texas to provide pension benefits for emergency services personnel who serve
without significant monetary remuneration. Al August 31, 2015, there were [98 contributing fire and/or
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Texas Emergency Services Retirement System

A Plan Description (continued)

emergency services department members participating in TESRS. Eligtble participants includé volunteer.
emergency services personnel who are members in good standing of a member department,

On August 31, 2015, the pension system membership consisted of:

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 3,073
Terminated members entitled to benefits but not yet receiving them 2.161
Active participants (vested and non-vested) 4,036

B. Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the TESRS’s fiduciary net position is available in a separately-issued
Comprehensive Apnual Financial Report that includes financial statements and tequired supplementary
information. TESRS issues a publicly available Annual Financial Report, which includes financial statements,
notes, and required supplementary information, which can be obtained at www.tesrs.org. The separately issued
actuarial valuations which may be of interest are also available at the same link.

C. Benefits Provided

Senate Bill, 65™ Legislature, Regular Session (1977), created TESRS and established the applicable benefit
provisions. The 79" Legislature, Regular Session (2005), re-codified the provisions and gave the TESRS
Board of Trustees authority to establish vesting requirements, contribution levels, benefit formulas and
eligibility requirements by Board rule. The benefit provisions include retirement benefits as well as death and
disability benefits. Members are 50% vested after the tenth year of service, with the vesting percent increasing
10% for year of the next five years of service so that a member becomes 100% vested with 15 years of service.
Upon reaching age 55, each vested member may retire and receive a monthly pension egual o his vested
percent multiplied by six times the governing body’s average monthly contribution over the member’s years of
qualified services. For years of service in excess of 15 years, this monthly benefit is increased at the rate of
6.2% compounded annually. There is no provision for automatic postretirement benefit increases.

On and off-duty death benefits and on-duty disability benefits are dependent on whether or not the member
was engaged in the performance of duties at the time of death or disability. Death benefits include a lump sum
amount or continuing monthly payments to a member’s surviving spouse and dependent children.

D. Funding Policy

Contributions are made by governing bodies for the participating departments. No contributions are required
from the individuals who are members of the System, nor are they allowed. The governing bodies of each
participating department are required to make contributions for each month a member performs emergency
services for a department (this minimum contribution is $36 per member and the department may make a
higher monthly contribution for its members). This is referred o as a Part One contribution, which is the
legacy portion of the System contribution that directly impacts future retiree annuities. The Stale is required to
contribute an amount necessary to make the System “actuarially sound” each year, which may not exceed one-
third of the total of all contributions made by participating governing bodies in a particular year.
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D. Funding Policy (continued)

The Board rule defining contributions was amended effective July 27, 2014 to add the potential for
actuarially determined Part Two contributions that would be required only if the expected future annual
contributions from the State are not enough with the Part One contributions to provide an adequate
contribution arrangement as determined by the most recent actuarial valuation. This Part Two portion,
which is actuarially determined as a percent of the Part One portion (not to exceed 15%), is to be
actuarially adjusted near the end of cach even-numbered calendar year based on the most recent actuarial
valuation. Based on the actuarial valuation as of August 31, 2014, the Part Two contribution rate was 0%,
since the first actuarial valuation report after adoption of the rules showed the System to have an adequate
contribution arrangement without any Part Two contributions. Additional contributions may be made by
governing bodies within two years of joining the System, to rant up to ten years of credit for service per
member. Prior service purchased must have occurred before the department began participation in the
System. A small subset of participating departments has a different contribution arrangement which is
being phased out over time. In this arrangement, contributions made in addition to the monthly
contributions for active members, are made by local governing bodies on a pay-as-you-go basis for
members who were pensioners when their respective departments merged into the System. There is no
actuarial impact associated with this arrangement as the pay-as-you-go contributions made by these
governing bodies are always equal to benefit payments paid by the System.

E. Contributions

The contribution requirement per active emergency services personnel member per month is not
actuarially determined. Rather, the minimum contribution provisions were set by board rule, and there is
no maximum coniribution rate. For the fiscal year ending August 31, 2014, total contributions (due, prior
service, and interest on prior financing) of $15.012 were paid by the City. The State appropriated
$1,530,343 for the fiscal year ending August 31, 2014 to the plan as a whole.

F. Acftuarial Assumptions

Total pension liability in the August 31, 2014 actuarial valuation was determined using the following
actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measarement.

Actuarial valuation date 8/31/2014

Actuarial cost method Entry age

Amortization method Level dollar, Open

Amortization period 30 years

Asset valuation method Market value smoothed by a 5-year deferred recognition

- method with a 80%/120% corridor on market value.
Actuarial assumptions:

Investment rate  of T1.75%
return® '
Projected salary increase N/A
*includes inflation at 3.5%
Cost of living None
adjustments
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F. Actuarial Assumptions (continued)

Mortality rates were hased on the RP-2000 Combined Healthy Lives Mortality Tables [or males and for
females projected to 2018 by scale AA. The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan
investments was determined using a building-block method in which expected future net real rates of
return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for ecach
major asset class. These components are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by
welghting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding
expected inflation (3.5%). In addition, the final 7.75% assumption reflected a reduction of 0.20% for
adverse deviation. The target allocation and expected arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset
class are summarized in the following table:

Long-Term
Expected Net Real
Asset Class Target Allocation Rate of Return
Equities
Large Cap Domestic 32.00% 5.20%
Small Cap Domestic 10.00% 5.80%
Developed [nternational 21.00% 5.50%
Emerging Markets 6.00% 5.40%
Master Limited Partnership 5.00% 7.10%
Fixed Income
Domestic 21.00% 1.40%
International . 5.00% 1.60%

G. Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.75%. No projection of cash flows was
used to determine the discount rate because the August 31, 2015 actuarial valuation showed that expected
contributions would pay the normal cost and amortize the unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) in
30 years using the conservative level dollar amortization method. That UAAL was based on an actuarial
value of assets that was $7.9 million less than the plan fiduciary net position as of August 31, 2014.
Because of the 30-year amortization period with the conservative amortization method and with a lower
value of assets, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is expected to be available to make all projected
future benefit payments of current active and inactive members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of
return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine
the total pension liability.

H. Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to changes in the discount rate
The following presents the net pension liability of the City, calculated using the discount rate of 7.75%, as

well as the city’s net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1
percentage point lower (6.75%) or | percentage point higher (8.75%) than the current rate:
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H. Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to changes in the discount rate (continued)

1% Decrease in 1% Increase in
Discount Rate Discount Rate  Discount Rate
(6.75%) (7.75%) (B.75%)

City's proportionate sharc of
the net pension liability: ' $ 168,354  § 103,769 % 38,646
I. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Qutflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows
of Resources Related to Pensions

At August 31, 2016, the City reported a liability of $103,769 for its proportionate share of the plan’s net
pension liability. This liability reflects a reduction for State pension support provided to the City. The
amount recognized by the City as a proportionate share of the net pension liability, the related State

support, and the total portion of the net pensien Hability that was associated with the City were as
followed:

City's proportionate share of the collective net pension liability $ 103,769
State's proportionate share that is associated with the City* 34,590
Total $ 138,359

*Calculated using the City’s proportionate share of contributions multiplied by the State’s share of the
collective net pension liability.

The net pension liability was measured as of August 31, 2016 and the total pension liability used to
calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. GASB
Statement No. 68 requires the net pension liability to be measured as of a date no earlier than the end of
the employer’s prior fiscal year. TESRS did not roll forward the net pension liability nor did they provide
the necessary information for the participants to roll forward themselves, While the City acknowledges
that the measurement date does not fall within this 12 month period, the City elected to honor the
conservatism principle and report a net pension liability measured as of August 31, 2016. The City used
the assumption that any differences in the net pension liability measured as of August 31, 2016 vérsus
September 30, 2016 would be immaterial. The employer’s proportion of the net pension liability was
based on the employer’s contributions to the pension plan relative to the contributions of all employers to
the plan for the period September 1, 2015 through August 31,2016.

At August 31, 2016 the employer’s proportion of the collective net pension liability was .475%. TESRS
did not provide prior year proporticns measured as of August 31, 2016. The City is using the assumption
that the change in proportion would have been immaterial and therefore disregarded this year.

There were no changes of assumptions or other inputs that affected measurement of the total pension
liability during the measurement period.

There were no changes of benefit terms that affected measurement of the total pension liability during the
measurement period.

For the year ended August 31, 2016, the City recognized pension expense of $12,772. The City
recognized on-behalf revenues of $ 7,662 calculated by taking the State’s total contributions to TESRS
multiplied by the City’s proportionate share.

43



ST

PSS

N N N Py

e,

=

_ City of Hearne, Texas
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2016

At August 31, 2016, the City reported its proportionate share of the TESRS deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred outflows of
Resources

Deferred Inflows of
Resources

Differences between projected and actual

investment eamings

$ 6,306

Contributions paid to TESRS subsequent to ,
the measurement date $ 21,753 $ -
$21,753 reported as deferred outflows or resources related to pensions resulting from contributions
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability for the
year ending September 30, 2016. The net amount of the employer’s balances of deferred outflows and

inflows or resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year ended Pension
September 30 Expense
2017 $ 7,680
2018 7,680
2019 12,156
2020 185
Total $—27,701

Note 14. Other post-employment benefits

Supplementary Death Benefit

The city also participates in the cost sharing multiple-employer defined benefit group-term life insurance
plan operated by the Texas Municipal Retirement system (TMRS) known as the Supplemental Death
Benefits Fund (SDBF). The city elected, by ordinance to provide group-term life insurance coverage (o
both current and retired employees. The city may terminate coverage under and discontinue participation

in the SDBF by adopting an ordinance before November | of any year to be effective the following
January 1. '

The death benefit for active employees provides a lump-sum payment approximately equal to the
employee’s annual salary (calculated based on employee’s actual earnings, for the 12-month period
preceding the month of death); retired employees are insured for $7,500; this coverage is an “other
postemployment benefit,” or OPEB.

The city contributes to the SDBF at a contractually required rate as determined by an annual actuarial
valuation. The rate is equal to the cost of providing one-year term life insurance. The funding policy for
the SDBF program is to assure that adequate resources are available to meet all death benefit payments
for the upcoming year; the intent is not to pre-fund retiree term life insurance during employee’s entire
careers. :

The city’s contribution to the TMRS SDBF for the year ended September 30, 2016, were $3,917, which
equaled the required contributions for the year.
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{ Note 15. Contingent Liabilities

Amounts received or recelvable from grantor agencies arc subject to audit and adjustment by srantor
agencies. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of the
applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be
determined at this time although the City expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

The City is a party to various claims and legal proceedings which normally occur in governmental
operations. It is not possible to estimate the ultimate outcome or liability. These contingencies are not
) likely to have a material adverse impact on the City.

Note 16. Restatement of Net Position and Fund Balance

During the year ended September 30, 2016, the City adopted Governmental Accounting Standard Number
N 68, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions.” The adoption of this standard required the City to
i report the net pension liability on the statement of net position. Therefore, an adjustment was made to the
\ beginning net position for the recording of the beginning net pension liability and the beginning deferred
outflow for contributions made after the measurement date. Net position of the proprietary fund and the

{ ‘ business-type activities has been reduced by $625,517 as of September 30, 2014. Net position of the
¢ - governmental activities has been reduced by $1,338,732 as of September 30, 2014.

{ Also, during the year ended September 30, 2015, the City became aware that tax assessor collector fees
i from prior periods dating back to 2008 had not been paid. Therefore, an adjustment was made to the
/ beginning fund balance and net position for the recording of this liability. Fund balance of the general

- fund and net position of the governmental activities as of September 30, 2014 has been reduced by
¢ $44,381.

Subsequent to September 30, 2015, the City became aware that certain sales tax revenues from April 2008
{ to March 2009 and expenses from August 2006 to October 2014 related to the Hearne Economic
i Development Corporation and the Hearne Infrastructure/Improvement Corporation had not been property
) recorded. Therefore, and adjustment was made to the beginning fund balance and net position for these
L adjustments. Fund balance of the general fund and the Hotel/Motel Occupancy Tax special revenue fund
f has been increased by $30,165 and § 70,000 , respectively, and net position of the governmental activities
has been increased by $100,165 as of September 30, 2014. Net position of the proprietary fund and the
business-type activities has been increased by $103,788 as of September 30, 2014. Net position as of
September 30, 2014 of the Hearne Economic Development Corporation and the Hearne
[ Infrastructure/Improvement Corporation has been reduced by $ 109,896 and $ 94,056 , respectively.
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. Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios
c{' Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS)
Last 10 Years (will ultimately be displayed)

i ] : 2015
Total Pension Liability

§

{ _ Service Cost ' $ 314,396
i Interest (on the Total Pension Liability) 518,420
) Change in benefit terms _ ‘ -
¢ Difference between expected and actual experience B 14,664
{ Change of assumptions 19,367
. Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions (298,473)
i] -
{ Net Change in Total Pension Liability. 568,374
i .

) Total Pension Liability - Beginning 7,398,039
i

N

i Total Pension Liability - Ending (a) $ 7,966,413
{ Plan Fiduciary Net Position
[ |

i Contributions - Employer 317,483
N Contrbutions - Employee 144,692
0 Net Investment Income 7.833
i Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions. (298,473)
) Adminis trative Expense ’ (4,770
{ Other (236)
; Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position 166,529
{ Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning 5,307,582
i

1

= Plan Fiduciary Net Position,- Ending (b) $ 5474111
{ . -
{ Net Pension Liability - Ending (a) - (b) ' $ 2492302
¢ - .

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of Total Pension Liability ) 08.71%
{

‘ Covered Employee Payroll $ 20067033
s

{ Net Pension Liability as a Percentage of Covered Employee Payroll 120.57%
i

( Notes to Schedule:

. GASB 68 requires 10 fiscal years of data to be provided in this schedule. As GASB 68 has
been initially adopted for the 2014 plan year, historical data is not presented.

{
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City of Hearne, Texas
Required Supplementary Information
For the Year Ended September 30, 2016

Schedule of Contributions
Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS)
Last T0 Years (will ultimately be displayed)

2016
Actuarially Determined Contribution $ 317,483
Contributions in relation to the 7 (317,483)
Contribution deficiency (excess) h) -
Covered employee payroll $ 2,067,033
Contributions as a percentage of 15.36%

Notes to Schedule of Contributions
Valuation Date:

Notes Actuarially .determined contribution rates are calculated as of
December 31 and become effective in JTanuary 13 months later,

Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine contribution Rates:

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal

Amortization Method Level percentage of Payroll, Closed

Remaining Amortization 30 years

Period

Asset Valuation Method 10 Year smoothed market; 15% soft cormridor

Inflation 2.50%

Salary Increases 3.50% to 10.50%, including inflation

Investment Rate of Return 6.75%

Retirement Age | Experienced-based table of rates that are specific to the City's plan of

benefits. Last updated for the 2015 valuation pursuant to an
experience study of the period 2010-2014

RP2000 Combined Mortality Table with Blue Collar Adjustment with
male rates nultiplied by 109% and female rates multiplied by 103% and

projected on a fully generational basis with scale BB
Other Information

Notes There werc not benefit changes during the year.

GASB 68 requires 10 fiscal years of data to be provided in this
schedule. As GASB 68 has been initially adopted for the 2015 fiscal
year, historical data is not presented.
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City of Hearne, Texas
Required Supplementary Information
For the Year Ended September 30, 2016 .

Schedule of City’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability
Texas Emergency Services Retirement System (TESRS)
Last 10 Years (will ultimately be displayed)

8/31/2016
City's proportion of the net pension liability 0.475%
City's proportionate share of the net pension liability 103,769
State's proportionate share of the net pension liability 34,590
Total | $ 138359
Number of Active Members* 23
City's Net Pension Liability per Active Member $ . 4512
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total liability 21.2%

o There 1s no compensation for active members. Number of active mernbers is used instead.

Notes to Schedule:

GASB 68 requires 10 fiscal years of data to be provided in this schedule. As GASB 68 has been initially adopted

for the 2014 plan year, historical data 1s not presented.

Changes in benefit terms — There were no changes in benefit terms that affect the measurement of the total pension

liability.

Changes in assumptions — There were no changes in assamptions or other inputs that affected the measurement of

the total pension liability during the measurement period.
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City of Hearne, Texas
Required Supplementary Information
For the Year Ended September 30, 2016

Schedule of Contributions
Texas Emergency Services Retirement System {TESRS)
Last 10 Years (will ultimately be displayed)

2016
Contractually required contribution $ 21,753
Contributions i relation to  the
" contractually required contribution 21,753
Contribution deficiency {excess) ' -
Number of Active Members™ 23
Contributions per active member _ $ . 946

o There is no compensation for active members. Number of active members 1s used instead.

Notes to Schedule: GASB 68 requires 10 fiscal years of data to be provided in this schedule. As GASB 68
has been initially adopted for the 2015 fiscal year, historical data is not presented.
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Combining Financial Statements

Non-Major Governmental Funds

Special Revenue Funds

Special revenue funds are used to account for specific revenues that are
legally restricted to expenditure for particular purposes.

Hotel/Motel Occupancy Tax Fund - This fund is used to account for the
tax collected from local hotels and motels, which is used to promote
tourism.

Police Special Fund — This fund is used to account for restricted grant
funds from the State for officer training and crime victims benefits.
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Assets
Taxes reccivable

Cash, restricted

Total assets

Liabilities and fund balances
Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Due to other funds

Total iabilities
Fund balances:
Restricted for police

Restricted for tourism

Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund balances

City of Hearne, Texas

Combining Balance Sheet
Non-major Governmental Funds

September 30, 2016

Special Revenue

Total
Police Non-major
Hotel/Motel Specilal Governmental
Tax Fund Funds
$ 11,913 $ 11,913
121,100 7,000 128,150
$ 133,013 3 7.090 $ 140,103
$ 15,150 $ - 3 15,150
15,150 - 15,150
- 7.090 7,090
117,863 - - 117,863
117,863 7,090 124,953
5 7,090 $ 140,103

5 133,013
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City of Hearne, Texas
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Non-major Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended September 30, 2016

Special Revenue

Total
Police Non-major
Hotel/Motel Special Governmental
Tax Fund " Funds
Revenues: )

Hotel/motel occupancy taxes : ¥ 113,701 $ - 3 113,701

Investment income ‘ 303 - 303

Intergovernmental 11,001 1,338 12,339
Total revenues 125,005 1,338 126,343

Expenditures:

Current:

"Transfers 68,520 68,529
Culture and recreation 59,290 - 59,290
Total expenditures ' 127,819 - 127,819

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures (2.814) 1,338 . (1,476)
Net change in fund balances (2.814) 1,338 (1,476)
Fund balances at beginning of year, as previously reported 190,677 5,752 196,429
Restatement of fund balance sec note 16 (70,000 4 (70,000)
Fund balances at end of year 3 117,863 $ 7000 % 124,953
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SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

Special Revenue Funds



City of Hearne, Texas
Hotel/Motel Occupancy Tax Special Revenue Fund
] Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
, Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended September 30, 2016

Budgzeted Amounis

Variance with
Final Budget

Onginal Final Actual Over (Under)

L!/ ‘ Revenues:
] Hotel motel occupancy taxes $ 170,600  $ 170,600 $ 113701 % (56,899)
. Investment income - - 303 303
{ Intergovemmental 2,700 2,700 11,001 8,301
i Total revenues 173,300 173,300 125,005 (48,295)
¢ Expenditures:
/ Current;
L} Culture and recreation:
L Transfers 84,800 84,800 68,529 (16,271)
‘ZE Economic development 85,800 85,800 59,290 (26,510}
{ Capital outlay 2,700 2,700 - (2,700)
Total expenditures 173,300 173,300 127,819 (45,481)
i
! Net change in fund balance - - (2,814) (2,814}
f

Fund balances at beginning of year, as previously reportec 190,677 190,677 190,677 -
f ‘Restatement of fund balance, see Note 16 (70,000) (70,000) (70,000) -
, Fund balances at beginning of year, as restated 120,677 120,677 120,677 -
{ Fund balance at end of year $ 120677 3 120677 $§ 117,863 % (2,814)
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SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES
IN NET POSITION — BUDGET AND ACTUAL

Enterprise Funds
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City of Hearne, Texas

Enterprise Fund

Schedule of Revenucs, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended September 30, 2016

Operating revenues:
Charges for sales and services:
Waler sales
Electric sales
Sewer charges
Sanitation
Tap fees
Rental fees
Penalties
Miscellaneous revenue
Total operating revenue

Operating cxpenses:
Wholesale utilities
Water department
Electric department
Sewer department
Sanitation department
Administrative and billing
Depreciation and amortization
Capital outlay
Total operating expenses
"~ Operating income

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Intcrgoverrimental
Contribution from component unit
Investment income
Gain on disposal of capital assets
Interest expense
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)

Change in net position before transfers
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Change in net posilion

Variance with

Nel position, beginning of year, as previously report 4,080,990

Restatement of net position, see Note 16
Net position, beginning of year, as restated

Net position, end of the year.

Budgeted Amounls Final Budget
Original Final Actual Qver (Under)
$1,190,200 $ 1,190,200 $1,156,413 s (33,787)
5,075,900 5,075,900 5,801,021 725,121
499 800 499,800 582,401 82,601
665,900 663,900 621,897 {44,003)
5,000 5,000 1,000 (4,000)
9,600 9,600 8,800 (800)
135,000 135,000 115,153 {19,847y
367,498 367,498 167,508 (199,990}
7,948,898 7,948,898 8,454,193 505,295
5,278,697 5,278,697 3,901,665 (1,377,032)
432,842 432,842 415,677 (17,165}
474 888 474,888 445,797 {29,091}
431,312 431,312 370,639 (60,673}
66,300 66,300 539,205 472,905
838,158 838,158 913,176 75,018
- 583,638 583,638
624,150 624,150 - (624,150)
8,146,347 8,146,347 7,169,797 (976,550}
(197,449) (197.449) 1,284,396 1,481,845
1,062,500 1,062,500 312,353 (750,147)
- - 3,388 3,388
(327,793) (327,793) (165,550) 162,243
734,707 734,707 150,191 (584,516)
537,258 537,258 1,434,587 597,329
624,800 624,800 - (624,800)
(1,162,058) (1,162,058) (1,079,280 82,778
(537,258) (537,258) (1,079,280 (542,022)
- - 355,307 355,307
4,080,990 4,080,990 -
4,080,990 4,080,990 - 4,080,990 -
$4,080,990 $4,080,990 $4.,436,297 $ 355307
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City of Hearne, Texas
Non-major Municipal Airport Enterprise Fund
Schedule of Revenues, and Changes in Net Position
Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended September 30, 2016

Vanance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Original Final Actual Over (Under)
Operatmg revenues:
Rental fees : N 30,400 % 30,400 b 22,340 $ (8,060)
Miscellancous revenue 95,700 95,700 36,201 {59,409
Tolal operating revenues 126,100 126,100 58,631 (67,469)
Operating expenscs: ‘
Adrport 104,900 104,900 55,540 (49,360)
Depreciation 33,000 33,000 08,714 63,714
Total operating expenscs 137,900 137,900 154254 16,354
Operating income (10s5) {1 1,800). (11,800} (95,623) (83,823)
Transfers in 11,800 11,800 - (11,800}
Change in nect position - - (95,623) (95,623)
Net position, beginning of the year 1,112,508 1,112,508 1,112,508 -
Net position, end of the yvear $ 1,112508 % 1,112,508 $ 1,016,885 $ (95,623)
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SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

Discretely Presented Component Units
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City of Hearne, Texas
Hearne Economic Development Corporation
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended September 34, 2016

Varance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Original Final Actual Over {(Under)
Revenues:
Sales taxes $ 215000 $ 215000 § 284401 kY 69,401
Investment income 1,200 1,200 2,364 1,164
Total revenues 216,200 216,200 286,765 70,565
Expenditures
Current:
Culture and recreation:
Economic development 216,200 216,200 129,382 (86,818)
Total expenditures 216,200 216,200 129,382 © (86,818)
Excess of revenues over expenditures - - 157,383 157,383
Other financing sources (uses):
Contrbutions to primary government - - (127,851) (127,851)
Net change in fund balances - - 29,532 29,532
Fund balances at beginning of year, as previously reported 836,653 836,653 836,653 -
Fund bhalances at beginning of year, as restated 836,653 836,653 836,653 -
Fund balances at end of year ' $ 836,653 $ 836,653 $ 866,185 $ 29,532
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City of Hearne, Texas
Hearne Infrastructure/lmprovement Corporation
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended September 30, 2016

Budgeted Amounts

Variance with

Final Budget

; Original Final Actual Over (Under)
\ Revenues:

L Sales taxes $ 215000 § 215000 $ 284401 § 69401

i Investment income 550 550 1404 914
{

i Total revenues 215,550 215,550 285,865 70,315

Expenditures:

i Current

i Culture and recreation:

7 Economic development 215,550 215,550 71,815 (143,735)
" Total expenditurcs 215,550 215,550 71,815 (143,735)
| Excess of revenues over expenditures - - 214,050 214,050

( Other ﬁnanc'mg sources {uses):

i Contributions to primary government - - (127,851) (127,851)
{ Net change in fund balances - - 86,199 86,199

i

1\ Fund balances at beginning of year, as previously reported 734,803 734,803 734,803 -

{

( Fund balances at beginning of year, as restated 734,803 734,803 734,303 -

{7 Fund balances at end of year $ 734803 % 734803 § 821,002 % 86,199
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SUPPLEMENTARY INDIVIDUAL
FUND SCHEDULES

(General Fund



Schedule of General Government Expenditures — Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended September 30, 2016

Legislative:
Personnel
Maintenance
Supplies
Other

Total legislative

Executive:
Personnel
Maintenance
Supplies
Other

Total executive

Fmance:
Personnel
Maintenance
Supplies
Contract services
Other

Total finance

Court:
Personnel
Maintenance
Supplies
Contract services
Other
Total court

Total general government

City of Hearne, Texas

General Fund

Budgeted Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget

Original Final Actual Over (Under)
$ 53984 § 3398 § 58913 % 4,929
1,500 1,500 2,690 1,190

300 300 4.627 4,327
7.400 7,400 18,038 10,638
63,184 63,184 84,268 21,084
210,394 210,394 260,443 50,049
1,800 1,800 2,725 925
1,200 1,200 3,878 2,678
4.250 4,250 4,220 (30
217,644 217,644 271,266 53,622
37,300 37,300 33,041 (4,259)
26,400 26,400 113,342 86,942
8,500 8,500 3,507 (4,993)
44,763 44,763 41,610 (3.153)
691,218 691,218 81,801 (609,417)
808,181 808,181 273,301 (534,880)
104,232 104,232 61,698 (42,534)

- - 6,102 6,102

1,000 1,000 3,821 2,821
54,000 54,000 45,862 (8,138)
6,500 6,500 2,571 (3.929)
165,732 165,732 120,054 (45,678)
$1,254741 - $1,254,741 $ 748,889 §  (505,832)
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Police:
Personnel
'/\ : Maintenance
Supplies
Other

Total police

4 _ Fire:
Personnel
Maintenance
Supplies
. Other
Total fire
. Total public safety
f
{
{

City of Hearne, Texas
General Fund

Schedule of Public Safety Expenditures — Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended September 30, 2016

- Vanance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Onginal Final Actual Over (Under)

§ 985746 % 985,746 3 968860 % (16,886)
27,600 27,600 69,235 41,635

92,891 92,891 57,285 (35,606)
13,200 13,200 19,981 6,781

1,119,437 1,119,437 1,115,361 (4,076)
19,132 19,132 30,771 11,639
27,500 27,500 30,736 3,236

93,901 93,901 28,633 (65,268)

6,500 6,500 6,217 (283)

147,033 147,033 96,357 (50,676)

$ 1,266470: $ 1,266,470 $ 1,211,718 $ £54,752)
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Streets
FPersonnel
- Maintenance
Supplies
Other

Total highways and streets

City of Hearne, Texas
General Fund
Schedule of Highways and Streets Expenditures — Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended September 30, 2016

Budgeted Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget

Original Final Actual Over (Under)
$221,856 $221,856 $220962 $ (894)

48,000 48,000 61,817 16,817
40,196 40,196 27,204 (12,992)
205,929 205,929 806 {205,123)
$515981  $515981  $313,7890 $ (202,192)

\
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Code enforcement:
Personnel
Maintenance
Supplies
Other

Total code enforcement
Animal control
Personnel
Maintenance
Supplics
Other

Total animal control

Total health and welfare

City of Hearne, Texas
General Fund
Schedule of Health and Welfare Expenditures — Budget and Actual

Budgeted A mounts

For the Year Ended September 30, 2016

Variance with
Final Budget

Original Final Actual Over (Under)
$ 39,773 $ 39,773 $ 15,119 $ (24,654)
1,100 1,100 1,704 604
5,550 5,550 2,056 (3,494)
200 200 2,226 2,026
46,623 46,623 21,105 (25,518)
45,569 45,569 43,624 (1,945)
800 800 5,119 4319
10,500 10,500 5,229 (5,271)
56,869 56,869 53,972 (2,897)
$ 103,492 $103,492 $ 75,077 $ (28,415)
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Library:
Personnel
Maintenance
Supplies
Other

Total library
Parks and recreation:
Personnel
Maintenance
Supplies
Other

Tolal parks and recreation

Total culture and recreation

City of Hearne, Texas

General Fund
Schedule of Culture and Recreation Expenditures — Budget and Actual

Budgeted Amounts

For the Year Ended September 30, 2016

Variance with

Final Budget

Onginal Final Actual Over (Under)
$ 134772 $ 134,772 $ 127323 % (7.449)
2,200 2,200 6,714 4,514
26,250 26,250 29,031 2,781
200 - 200 2,838 2,638
163,422 163,422 165,906 2,484
287,210 287,210 248,229 (38,981
51,200 51,200 94,709 43,509
60,045 60,045 20,280 (39,765)
19,000 19,000 165 (18,835)
417,455 417,455 363,383 (54,072)
580,877 $ 580,877 $ 529,289 % (51,588)
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Donald L Allman, CPA, PC
205 East University Ave., Ste. 165
Georgetown, Texas 78626

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT
ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
City of Hearne, Texas

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Compiroller General of
the United States, the financial statements of the govemmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate
discretely presented compenent units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Hearne,
Texas, as of and for the year ended September 30, 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise City of Hearne, Texas" basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 6, 2017.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered City of Hearne, Texas' internal control over
financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the
purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of City of Hearne, Texas' internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of
City of Hearne, Texas' internal control. A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does
not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and
correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination -of
deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those
charged with governance.

Cur consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not
designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given
these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material woaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether City of Hearne, Texas' financial statements are free from material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements, ncncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement
amounis. However, providing an opinicn on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompllance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of cur testing of internal control and compliance and the results of

that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Govemmaent Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal
control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.,

y/Z

Georgetown, Texas
October 6, 2017
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